DIRECTORS’ REPORT- FY 2024-25

The Members,
Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Cotporation Limited

The Board of Directors of Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited (“your Company” or
“the Company” or “SMHFC”) ate pleased to present the 17t (Seventeenth) Annual Report of your
Company together with the Audited Accounts and Auditor's Report for the financial year ended 315t March
2025. Your Company is a Housing Finance Company registered with National Housing Bank (“NHB”)
and regulated by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) and supervised by NHB.

Einancial Highlights

I (Rs. in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 2024-25 2023-24
Revenue from Operations 28,315.83 24,083.22
Other Income 183.72 280.03_
Exceptonatteme, s Ton Frperen o108 | 1751623
Less: Depreciation/ Amottisation/ Impairment 391.59 302.06
:::iﬁ; :;o;; :;:::: Finance Costs, Exceptional items, 1920824 17,214.16
Less: Finance Costs 16,321.20 i 14,390.09
Profit /loss before Exceptional items and Tax Expense 2,907.04 _2,824.07 )

?dd/ (less): Exceptional items _ - -
Profit /loss befote Tax Expense 2,907.04 2,824.07
Less: Tax Expense (Current & Defetred) 580.39 543.94—-
Profit /loss for the year (1) . 2,326.65 2,280.14
Total Comprehensivezlcome/ loss (2) 4.74 -7.52

| Total (1+2) 2,331.39 | ;,27_2.62—

_Balance of profit /loss for eatliet yeats 6,347.57 4,701.34
Less: Transfer to Deber_lture Redemption Reserve __" -

| Less: Transfer to Statutory R;serves _ 715.12 626.38—

_Less: Transfer to Impairment Reserves - -

Less: Share Issue Expenses (net of tax)




Less: Dividend paid on Equity Shates - -

Less: Dividend paid on Prefetence Shares - -

Less: Dividend Distribution Tax - -

Balance carried forward 7,963.84 6,347.57

State of Company affairs

During the year under review, your Company increased most of the operating and financial parameters.
Revenues of the Company were up 18% to Rs. 283.16 Cr. (PY Rs. 240.83 Cr.) and PBT increased by 3%
to Rs. 29.07 Cr. (PY Rs. 28.24 Cr.) - and after payment of Rs 5.80 Cr. (PY Rs. 5.44 Cr.) in current and
deferred taxes and taxes on debenture issue expenses, PAT increased by 2% to Rs. 23.27 Cr. (PY Rs. 22.80
Cr.).

In terms of lending operations, cumulative housing loan sanctions aggregated Rs. 4,308.37 Cr. (up 14%
from Rs. 3,781.52 Cr. at end of the previous financial year) — mostly to lower income, urban families who
are generally excluded from the mainstream banking sector. The total loans outstanding figure was
Rs. 2,268.13 Cr. (growth of 12% over Rs. 2,027.84 Cr. at end of the previous financial year). The Company
currently operates in 11 states — Maharashtra, Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh, Rajasthan, West Bengal,
Chhattisgarh, Tamil Nadu, Haryana, Odisha, 1 Union Tettitory — Daman and Diu and a recent entry during
the year into the states of Andhra Pradesh and Telangana.

In terms of portfolio quality, the Company had 1,234 (PY 889) loan accounts as on year end - March 31,
2025 - which were classified as non-performing assets (“NPAs”) per the prudential guidelines issued by
the RBI / NHB. The amount of such Gross NPAs was Rs. 65.57 Cr. (PY Rs. 42.57 Cr.) which was 2.89%
(PY 2.10%) of the total loan portfolio of the Company as at March 31, 2025. The Company has created
necessaty provisions in accordance with the RBI & NHB Directions, after which Net NPAs stood at
Rs. 47.85 Cr. (PY Rs. 32.30 Cr.) and 2.11% (PY 1.59%) of the total loan portfolio as at March 31, 2025.

The Net Worth increased to Rs. 386.05 Cr. (PY Rs. 347.35 Cr.). The Company increased its long-term
debt to Rs. 1,954.2 Cr. (PY Rs. 1,749.41 Cr.) of which approx. 14.02% continues to be refinance support
from the NHB. Other lenders to your Company include the nationalized bank such as State Bank of India,
Union Bank of India, Punjab National Bank, Canara Bank, Bank of Baroda, UCO Bank, Indian Bank,
Bank of Maharashtra and Bank of India; commercial banks such as HDFC Bank Ltd., Kotak Mahindra
Bank Ltd., DCB Bank Ltd., ICICI Bank Limited, Karnataka Bank Ltd., South Indian Bank Ltd, Federal
Bank I.td, Yes Bank Ltd, Induslnd Bank Ltd, The Karur Vysya Bank Ltd.,, IDBI Bank Ltd., Axis Bank
Ltd., RBL Bank Limited, CSB Bank Limited, Bandhan Bank Limited, and HSBC Bank Litmited; and
NBFCs such as Bajaj Finance Ltd, A.K. Capital Finance Ltd and Sundaram Home Finance Limited. The
Company’s major housing loan portfolio continues to qualify as priotity sector as defined by the Reserve
Bank of India (“RBI”). Based on our excellent relationships with our current bankers and the company’s
financial and portfolio performance we are confident of arranging additional debt to cover projected

growth plans.

The Company is very well capitalised with capital adequacy ratio at 31.93% of risk weighted assets, as
against the minimum requirement of 15%.



Change in the nature of Business

There was no change in the nature of business during the year.

Share Capital

(a) Authorised Share Capital of the Company:

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company as on 13t April 2024 stood at Rs. 1,25,00,00,000/-
(Rupees One Hundred and Twenty-Five Crotes Only) consisting of 9,40,00,000 (Nine Crores Forty
Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) and 31,00,000 (Thirty-One Lakhs) Preference
Shares of Rs. 100 each (Rupees Hundred each). During the year under review, there was no change in

the Authorised Capital of the Company.

(b) Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Share Capital of the Company:

During the year under review, the Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Share Capital of the Company remains
unchanged at Rs. 74,72,70,430/- (Rupees Seventy-Four Crores Seventy-Two Lakhs, Seventy
Thousand, Four Hundred and Thirty only).

Non- Convertible Debentures:

During the petiod under review, the Company has not issued any Non-convertible Debentures (NCDs).

As at 315t March 2025, NCDs amounting to Rs. 30 crores wete outstanding viz. 200 Rated, Subordinated,
Unsecuted, Unlisted, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures each having a face value of Rs. 10,00,000
(Indian Rupees Ten Lakh) aggregating to a face value of Rs. 20,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Twenty Crore)
and 1000 Rated, Subordinated, Unsecured, Unlisted, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures each
having a face value of Rs. 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) aggregating to a face value of Rs. 10,00,00,000
(Indian Rupees Ten Crore) allotted to M/s. A. K. Capital Finance Limited. The Company has been regular
in making repayment of principal and payment of interest on the NCDs.

During the year under review, your Company has redeemed following Non- Convertible Debentures

(“NCD”): ,
St. ISIN Name of Particulars | No. of Face Total Date of Date of
No. NCD of NCD NCD Value Value Allotment Redem
Allottees ption
1. INE67 A K Rated, 300 Rs. Rs. 22.09.2021 22.09.20
6J08015 Capital Senior, 10,00,000 | 30,00,00,000 24
Finance Unlisted, /-
Limited Unsecured,
Taxable,
Redeemable,
Transferable,
Non-
Convertible
Debentures
2 | INE67 ! International | Rated, [ 2,65,000 | Rs. 1,000 Rs. 22.06.2017 18.11.20
6J07017 Finance Secured, 26,50,00,00 24
Corporation Unlisted, 0/-
(Tranche 1) | Redeemable,
- Non-




Convertible
Debentures

3 INEG67 | International Rated, 2,66,000 | Rs. 1,000 Rs. 27.06.2018 18.11.20
6J07025 Finance Secured, 26,60,00,00 24
Cotporation Unlisted, 0/-
(Tranche 2) | Redeemable,
Non-
Convertible
Debentures

As at 31t March 2025, there were no NCDs which have not been claimed by the Investors ot not paid by
the Company after the date on which the said NCDs became due for redemption. Accordingly, the amount
of NCD remaining unclaimed or unpaid beyond due date is Nil.

Fixed Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Section 76 of the Companies Act, 2013,

since incorpotration.

Business Risk Management

The Company has a well-defined risk management policy and framework in place (which includes
management of credit risk, market risk and operational risk), and has established procedures periodically
reviewed by Executive Risk Management Committee and then placed before the Risk Management
Committee, the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, the risk assessment and minimisation
procedures being followed, and steps taken to mitigate these risks. The Enterprise Risk Management Policy
is reviewed annually by the Board of Directors.

Annual Return

The Annual Return in Form MGT-7 is available on the Company’s website at
https:/ /svatantrambfc.com/corporateinformation.

Corporate Social Responsibility Initiatives

Your directors confirm that in line with the mandatory requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, your
Company had constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee on March 16, 2015 (which was
reconstituted on September 27, 2024, due to the change in the Board of Directors) and has also established
a formal CSR Policy in accordance. with the Act.

However, while the CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is
in compliance with the CSR objectives and Policy of your Company, it is to be noted that the Company
has not spent the required amount as per the Companies Act 2013 which has specified that 2% of the
average net profits in the last 3 financial years to be spent on CSR activities. For the year ended March 31,
2025, this amount was Rs. 50.20 lakhs, and the Company spent Rs. 35.11 lakhs (details per “Annexure A”),
which is a shortfall of Rs. 15.10 lakhs. As per the CSR Rules under the Companies Act, if the company
fails to spend the CSR amount specified and has identified any CSR Initiatives as “Ongoing Projects” as
defined the CSR Rules, then it has to transfer the said unspent CSR Amount in a separate Bank Account.
Consequently, the Company had identified CSR Initiatives as Ongoing Projects and transferred the
unspent amount of Rs. 15.10 lakhs to a separate Bank Account on April 29, 2025.




Particulars under Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013

1. Particulars of Emplovees:
SMHEFC had 1224 employees as of Match 31, 2025, as follows:

- Female - 126
- Male - 1098
- Transgender — 0

Being an Unlisted Public Company, the provisions of Section 197(12) of Companies Act, 2013, read
with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), Rules,
2014, as amended from time to time, are not applicable to the Company.

2. Conservation of Energy & Technical Absorption:
The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with rules framed thereunder in respect of conservation of energy and technology absorption
have not been furnished considering the nature of activities undertaken by the company during the

year under review.

The Company has, however, used information technology extensively in its operations.

3. Foreign Fxchange:

During the year under review, there were no foreign exchange earnings ot outgo.

Dividend

Your Directors feel that it is prudent to plough back the profits for futute growth of the Company and do
not recommend any dividend for the year ended 315t March 2025.

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company which have
occurted between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements
relate and the date of the report.

There ate no material changes or commitments, which have occurred after the closure of the financial
statements for the Financial Year 2024-25 till the date of this Repott, that affect the financial position of

the Company in any adverse way.

Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and company’s operations in future.

There were no significant or material orders passed by any Courts or Regulators ot Tribunals duting the
Financial Year 2024-25 that, in the opinion of the Board, have an impact on the going concern status and
the operations of the Company in the future.

-C_or_nﬁance of Appiicgle Laws and Secretarial Standards

The Board of Directors hereby declare that the Company is in compliance of the provisions of the
applicable provisions of secretarial standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

The provisions of Section 186(11) and 134(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013 requiting disclosure of
particulars of the loan given, investments made, and guarantee given, or securities provided are not



applicable to the company.

Details in respect of frauds reported by auditors under Section 143(12):

During the year under review, no instances of fraud committed against the Company by its officers or
employees were reported by the Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditor under Section 143(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 to the Audit Committee or the Boatd of Directors of the Company.

Details of subsidiary/joint venture/associate company

The Company does not have any subsidiary or associate, nor has entered into any joint venture with any
organization.

Reserves

The Company proposes to transfer the entire Profit after Tax amounting to Rs. 23,26,66,760/- to General
Resetves, out of which further statutory approptiations will be made.

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

The Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy was approved by the Board at its Meeting held on 22nd
October 2014 with effect from 1+ January 2015. The main purpose of the Policy is to deal with instances
of fraud and mismanagement, if any, and to protect any person who makes a good faith disclosure of
suspected wrongful conduct or violations of the Company’s Code of Ethics. The Vigil Mechanism/
Whistle Blower Policy is posted on the website of the Company at http om/p

During the period under review there was no concerns ot grievances reported under Vigil Mechanism/
Whistle Blower Policy.

Directors/Key Managerial Personnel

® Re-appointments
Mr. Jayesh Navin Shah, Whole-Time Ditector, retiring by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for
teappointment. The Board recommends his reappointment for your approval.

® Resignations:
Duting the year under review following resignations were made:
- Mr. Vineet Bijendra Chattree resigned from the position of Ditector of the Company w.e.f.
September 27, 2024.
- Mr. Jayesh Navin Shah resigned from the position of the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) of the
Company w.e.f. October 31, 2024, while continuing to hold the position of a Whole-Time Director.

® Appointments:
During the year under review following appointments were made:
- Mr. Nitesh Amarnani was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company on
August 9, 2024.
- Mt Deepabh Jain was appointed as Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company on November
4,2024.

® Board Evaluation
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board conducted a formal annual



evaluation of its own petformance and that of its committees and individual directors through a
sttuctured questionnaire comprising various criteria broadly based on: (i) Knowledge to petform the
role; (i) Time and level of participation; (iif) Performance of duties and level of oversight; and (iv)
Professional conduct. The reports were scrutinized by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

® Remuneration Policy
The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a
policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management, and their remuneration. The
salient features of the Nomination & Remuneration Policy are given in “Annexure B”. The complete
Policy can be found at Company’s website at https:, policies.

® Meetings
During the year, 8 Board Meetings, 6 Audit Committee Meetings, 5 Nomination & Remuneration
Committee Meetings, 2 CSR Committee Meetings and 4 IT Strategy Meetings were convened and held.
The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the petiod prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013. The details of the same are given in the “Annexure C”.

The 16% Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on 31t August 2024.

® Composition of the Committees:

> The Audit Committee was reconstituted by the Board on 27t September 2024. The Members of
the Audit Committee ate:

1. Ms. Ananyashree Birla
2. Mr. Anil Chirania
3. Mr. Jayesh Navin Shah

> The Nomination and Remuneration was reconstituted by the Board on 27t September 2024. The
Members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are:

1. Ms. Ananyashree Birla
2. Mr. Anil Chirania
3. Mr. Jayesh Navin Shah

> The CSR Committee was reconstituted by the Board on 27t September 2024. The Members of
the CSR Committee are:

1. Ms. Ananyashree Birla
2. Mzr. Anil Chirania
3. Mr. Jayesh Navin Shah

> The IT Strategy Committee was reconstituted by the Board on 20 May 2024 and later on 27t
September 2024. The Members of the IT Strategy Comtmittee are:

1. Ms. Ananyashree Bitla
2. Mzt Anil Chirania
3. Mr. Jayesh Navin Shah



Auditors and Audit Reports

> Statutory Auditor:

M/s S. Bhandari & Co LLP (ICAI Firm Registration no. 000560C/ C400334) were appointed as Statutory
Auditors of your Company at the 14% Annual General Meeting held on 5% Septembet 2022 for a term of
three consecutive years from the conclusion of the 14 Annual Genetal Meeting until the conclusion of
the 17% Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2025,

During the year under review, there was change in the Statutory Auditor Partner due to tesignation of
Ms. Rupal Kumbhat. Mr. Jai Shankar Prasad Bansal, Partner of M/s. S Bhandati & Co LLP was appointed
as the partner for conducting the audit of your Company for FY 2024-25.

Further, M/s. T. R. Chadha & Co. LLP, Charteted Accountants (Firm Registration No.
006711N/N500028), were approved for appointment as statutory auditors of the Company in the Meeting
of the Board of Directors held on July 7, 2025 for a continuous period of 3 (three) years, viz. FY 2025-26,
FY 2026-27 and FY 2027-28, to hold office from the conclusion of the 17t AGM to be held for FY 2024-
25 till the conclusion of the 20t AGM to be held for FY 2027-28, subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing AGM. They have confirmed their eligibility under Section 141 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and RBI Guidelines to carry out the Statutory Audit of the Company.

> Audit Report:

M/s S. Bhandari & Co LLP, (ICATI Firm Registration no. 000560C/ C400334) the Statutory Auditor of
the Company who conducted the Statutory Audit for the financial year 2024-25 have submitted theit report
with unmodified opinion. There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditor’s Repott which
require any clarification/explanation. The Notes to Accounts forming part of the financial statements are
self-explanatory and need no further explanation.

> Secretarial Auditor:

In pursuance to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has M/s MMJB & Associates LLP,
Practicing Company Secretary, (ACS No.: 34733 and Certificate of Practice No. 22502) to conduct
Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2024-25. The Report for the financial year ended 31st March 2025,
is annexed to this report as “Annexure D”.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditor’s Report which require any
clarification/explanation.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

In terms of Section 134 (3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, we, the Directots of Svatantra Micro Housing
Finance Corporation Limited, state in respect of Financial Year 2024-25 that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the company
for that petiod;



¢) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient cate for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls

The Company has put in place an adequate internal control system to safeguard all assets and ensure
operational efficiency. The Company also has an internal auditor to conduct the testing of the Internal
Financial Control along with the ongoing internal audits, covering all aspects of operations, and adherence
to internal policies and procedures as well as to regulatory and legal requirements. The Internal Financial
Controls Testing Report dated May 8, 2025, as submitted by the Internal Auditor of the Company was
reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on
May 12, 2025. The internal audit reports are reviewed regularly by the Audit Committee of the Board, and
wherever necessary, internal control systems are strengthened, and corrective actions are immediately

taken.

Regulatory Compliance

Following the amendment in the Finance Act, 2019 and the subsequent notification by the Reserve Bank
of India (RBI) in August 2019, HFCs are being treated as one of the categories of Non-Banking Financial
Companies (NBFCs) for regulatory purposes and accordingly come under RBI’s direct oversight. The
NHB, however, would continue to carry out supervision of HFCs. In this regard Master Direction — Non-
Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 was notified
on 17t February 2021 in supersession of the regulations/ directions as given in Chapter XVII of these
directions.

The Company has been following guidelines, circulars and directions issued by the RBI/ NHB, from time
to time. The Company has complied with the Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company —
Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 and other directions/guidelines prescribed
by the Reserve Bank of India including issuing a comprehensive Know Your Customer (“KYC”)
Guidelines and Anti Money Laundering Standards and adopting the Fair Practices Code framed by the
RBI which seeks to promote good and fair practices in dealing with customers.

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

32

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy named “Policy Against Sexual Harassment
in line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. A “Complaint Redressal Committee” has been set up to redress
complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary,

trainees) are covered under this policy.

Under Section 21 of the Prevention of Sexual Hatassment at the Workplace Act, 2013 and Rule 14 of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Rules, 2013, the
Annual Report for the calendar year ended 315t December 2024 was submitted to the Board as well as The
District Officer of the relevant states within the due date, containing the following information:



1. No. of Complaints received duting the calendar year 2024: 1

No. of Complaints disposed of during the calendar year |

2. 2024: 1

3. No. of cases pending for more than ninety days: NIL

4 | No. of workshops or awareness programs against sexual 5

' harassment carried out:
I

Action taken by Employer:
The Complaint Redressal
Committee in its meeting held on

March 29, 2024, decided as
follows:

As per the provisions of Clause
10.2 of the Policy Against Sexual
Harassment of the Company and
| in line with Section 10 of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013, and at the request of the
Complainant, the Committee
concluded the  proceedings
through conciliation in the
presence of two witnesses. It was
confirmed that no monetary
settlement had been made as a
basis of such conciliation.

5. | Nature of action taken by the employer or District Officer:

During the year under review, one complaint was received and disposed off under the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

The Company has complied with the provisions of the said Act while dealing with the complaint. To raise
awareness and understanding of this issue, an online learning module with the latest update has been
implemented. Additionally, the Company has been conducting virtual sessions to bring mote awareness
among the employees.

Ered?Rating

Your Company’s financial discipline and prudence is reflected in the strong Credit ratings assigned by
Rating Agencies during the year under review, as under:

- : |
‘ Instrument Rating Rating ' Amount Remarks
Agency
Lone-T B Stabl
ong-Term Bank CRISIL. CRISIL A+ Rs. 550 Crores rble
Loan Facilities |

NCD Issue CRISIL CRISIL A+ Rs. 118.10 Crores Stable ‘




|
Long- k
ong-Term Ban CARE CARE AA- Rs. 1,850 Crores Stable |
Facilities ) |
Short-Teem Sank CARE CARE A1+ Rs. 50 Crores _
Facilities

Related Party Transactions

As per requirement of the National Housing Bank (NHB) Notification No. NHB. HFC. CG-DIR.1/MD
& CEO/2016 dated 9t February 2017, the Board of Directors has adopted the Related Party Transactions
Policy (“RPT”) w.e.f. June 1, 2017 (duly approved by the Board at its meeting held on May 29, 2017)
annexed as “Annexure E”. The objective of this policy and procedure is to ensure that transactions between
SMHFC and its related patties are based on principles of transparency and arm’s length pricing as provided
under the section 188 of the Companies Act 2013. Likewise, this policy aims at preventing and providing
guidance in situations of potential conflict of interests in the implementation of transactions involving such
related parties.

A Statement containing details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions with Related Parties
on an arm’s length basis with respect to transactions covered under Section 188(1) of the Act, in the
prescribed Form No. AOC-2, is attached as “Annexure F”. Further, details of Related Party Transactions,
as required to be disclosed by Indian Accounting Standard — 24 on “Related Party Disclosures” specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, are
given in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

During the year, the Company has not entered into any transaction with Related Parties which is not in its
otdinary course of business or not on an arm’s length basis and which requires disclosure in this Report in
terms of the provisions of Section 188(1) of the Act.

Statement with respect to the compliance of the provisions relating to the Maternity Benefit Act
1961

Your Company is fully compliant with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 ensuring that all
mandated benefits are extended to our employees. Additionally, details of these benefits are prominently
displayed on the notice boards across our office locations. Any amendments to our internal policies are
made in alignment with updates to the applicable legislation.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report (MDAR)

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review is presented in “Annexure G,
which is a part of this report.

Corporate Governance Disclosures:

The Corporate Governance Disclosure for the Financial Year 2024-25 as stipulated under RBI Circular
DOR.CRE.REC. No0.60/03.10.001/2021-22 dated October 22, 2021, on ‘Scale Based Regulation (SBR): A
Revised Regulatory Framework’ for NBFCs, read with RBI Circular DOR.ACC.REC.
No0.20/21.04.018/2022-23 dated April 19, 2022, on Disclosures in Financial Statements- Notes to Accounts
of NBFCs is annexed as “Annexure H”.



Other disclosures:

a) Your Company has not issued any shares with differential rights or sweat equity shares.
b) There is no revision in the financial statements.

¢) The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the setvices rendeted by the Company.

d) Your Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Intetnal Complaints
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

e) The Company, in the capacity of Financial Creditor, has not filed any applications with National
Company Law Tribunal under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the financial year
2024-25 for recovery of outstanding loans against any customer.

f) The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement
and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the
reasons thereof is not applicable to your Company.
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“Annexure A”

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

Pursuant to Section 135(1) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Cotporate Social
Responsibility) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors has constituted a CSR Committee. The Board has also
framed a CSR policy in compliance with the provisions of Companies Act 2013.

In line with CSR Policy and in accordance with Schedule VII of the Act, the Company proposes to
undertake suitable projects in the field of education, women empowerment, humanitarian relief, sanitation,
preventive healthcare.

The objective of the company’s CSR policy is to lay down guiding principles for proper functioning of CSR
activities to attain sustainable development of the nearby society.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl Name of Director Designation/ Number of Number of
No. Nature of meetings of meetings of
Ditectorship CSR CSR
Committee Committee
held during the attended
year during the year
1. Ms. Ananyashree Birla Chairman & Director 2 0
Mzr. Vineet Bijendra
2. Chattree (resigned w.c.f. Director 2 1
September 27, 2024)*
3. Mt. Anil Chirania Director
Mr. Jayesh Navin Shah** Whole-Time Director

* Note 1: Mr. Vineet Bijendra Chattree Resigned from the position of Director w.e.f. 27th September 2024
and the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was re-constituted on 27th September 2024.

** Note 2: Mr. Jayesh Navin Shah during the year resigned from the position of Chief Executive Officer
w.e.f 315t October 2024 but continued to hold the position of Whole-Time Director.

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the Board ate disclosed on the website of the company.

https://svatantramhfc.com/corporate-social-responsibility

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.

Not Applicable

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).

Rs. 25,10,24,766/-

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).
Rs. 50,20,495/-

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial
years.

NIL




(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial yeat, if any

NIL

(e)Total CSR obligation for the financial year (b+c-d).

Rs. 50,20,495/-

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and othet than Ongoing Project):

Rs. 35,11,380/-

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads:

NIL

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable:

N.A.

(d)T'otal amount spent for the Financial Year (at+b+c):

Rs. 35,11,380/-

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total Amount | Lotal Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Spent for the Unspent CSR Account as per | Schedule VII as per second proviso to section
Financial Year. section 135(6). 135(5).
(in Rs.) Amount Date of | Name of the Amount Date of
transfer Fund transfer
Rs. 35,11,380/- Rs. 15,10,000/- | 29-04-2025 - - -
(f) Excess amount for set off, if any:
SL | Particular | Amount (in Rs.)
No. |
6] Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) Rs. 50,20,495/-
(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs. 35,11,380/- |
(i) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(1)] o NIL
(iv) Surplus atising out of the CSR projects or programmes ot activities of the | NIL
| previous financial veats, if any
NIL




7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Preceding Amount Balance | Amount | Amount transferred to Amount |Deficiency
Financial | transferred | Amountin| spentin | any fund specified under| remaining if any

o. Year. to Unspent | Unspent the Schedule VII as per to be spent
CSR CSR Financial |  section 135(5), if any. in
Account Account | Year (in succeeding
under under sub- Rs.). Amount Date of financial
section 135 | section (6) (in Rs). transfer. years. (in
(6) (in Rs.) | ofsection Rs.)
135 (in
Rs.)
2021-22 | Rs. 3,00,000/- NIL NIL NIL NA NIL NIL
2022-23 Rs. NIL Rs. NIL NA NIL NIL
10,00,000/- 5,00,000/-
2023-24 Rs. Rs. NIL NIL NA Rs. NIL
10,45,000/-* | 5,00,000/-* 10,45,000/-*
TOTAL Rs. Rs. Rs. NIL - Rs. NIL
23,45,000/- | 5,00,000/-| 5,00,000/- 10,45,000/ -

* Note: The Company had executed a Memorandum of Understanding with Desai Foundation in the
Financial Year 2023-24 towards the CSR Head of promoting health care including preventive health care
and sanitation for the Menstrual Health & Hygiene (MHM) Awareness Project in Odisha as an Ongoing
Project. The amount of Rs. 5,45,000 was transfetred to Desai Foundation on January 7, 2024. As per the
update received from The Desai Foundation, they have not utilized the allocated funds for the agreed
project, and they plan to commence implementation in the next financial year (FY 2025-26).

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquited through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

No

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit
as per section 135(5).

The Company has approved CSR expenditure of Rs. 50,20,495/- (i.e. two percent of the average net profit
of the last three financial years) for the financial year 2024-25.

The Company could not spend the specified CSR amount as it was still in the process of determining
specific activities and identifying specific partners that would be aligned with your Company’s CSR Policy.
The unspent fund will be utilized in next three Financial Years in line with the CSR Regulations.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Svatantra Micto Housiny Finance Corporation Limited

Ja 5"&.5]1 Navin Shah

\
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Director & Chairman - CSR Committee
(DIN: 02562108)

Place: Mumbai
Date: U 7 JUL lULD



SVATANTRA MICRO HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
SALIENT FEATURES OF THE CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) POLICY

SCOPE

The CSR Policy applies to the formulation, execution, monitoring, evaluation, and documentation of CSR
activities undertaken by the Company.

OBJECTIVE

The main objective of SMHFC’s CSR policy is:
® To lay down guidelines to make CSR a key business process for sustainable development of the
society (in addition to the social mission of the Company);
® To directly/indirectly undertake projects/programs which will enhance the quality of life and
economic well-being of the communities in the society at large;
® To generate goodwill and recognition among all stakeholdets of the company.

CSR AMOUNT AND EXPENDITURE

The Annual budget for the CSR Expenditure will be proposed by the CSR committee every year for the
approval of the Board of Directors of the Company & post the Board of Director's approval, the CSR
Expenditure can be incurred by the Company.

The committee shall endeavour to spend at least 2% of the average net profit duting the preceding 3
financial years on CSR activities as enumerated in this CSR Policy and in the manner as specified in Section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder from time to time.

GUIDING PRINCIPLES FOR SELECTION OF CSR ACTIVITIES

SMHFC shall conduct its CSR activities as laid down in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and as
approved by the CSR Committee of the Company. The Company’s focus will be related to improvement
in living conditions as related to housing or support of institutions working with families in poor housing
and financial education as these are very much related to the mission of SMHFC.

GUIDING PRINCIPLES FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF CSR ACTIVITIES

SMHFC may directly undertake the CSR activities as permitted under Schedule VII and approved by the
CSR Committee or execute and implement CSR activities through any other Implementing Agency
registered in India, having a valid CSR Registration Number granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA) and having track record of service, performance, governance, and accountability.

CSR COMMITTEE

CSR Committee of Board of Directors has been formed in pursuance of the Section 135 of Companies Act,
2013. The Committee will play the following role in fulfilling the Company’s CSR objectives:
® Review and recommend the CSR Policy to the Boatd of Directors
® Recommend the amount of annual expenditure to be incutred on the CSR activities;
® Review and recommend to the Board, certain CSR projects/ptogrammes as ongoing projects in
accordance with the CSR Rules;
® Formulate and recommend to the Board the Annual Action Plan of the Company in pursuance of this
Policy;
® Annually report to the Board, the status of the CSR activities and contributions made by the Company;



® Any other matter as the CSR Committee may deem appropriate after approval of the Board of Directors
or as may be directed by the Boatd of Directors from time to time.

ANNUAL ACTION PLAN

The CSR Committee shall formulate an Annual Action Plan for each financial year and recommend the
same to the Board for its approval.

PROCESS FOR IMPLEMENTING CSR ACTIVITIES / PROJECTS

The following procedure is required to be adhered to while undertaking/ funding CSR activities:

® The CSR contribution would be for a project as identified by the Company, either for a single financial
year or as an ongoing project for multi-years, depending on the scale and needs of the project.

® The disbursement of the contribution amount by the Company to the Implementing Agency shall be
made only if they have a unique CSR registration number granted by the MCA and requisite approvals
and registrations as required under the Income Tax Act, 1961 or other applicable laws in India; and

® The disbursement will be made only upon receipt of a proposal from the Implementing Agency
specifying the budget that is required, activity for which it is required and project outputs & outcomes,
as may be required.

MONITORING AND EVALUATION FRAMEWORK

The Company shall be entitled to receive the following information from the Implementing Agencies:
® A valid CSR Registration Number granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA);

A valid Registration Certificate under Section 12A of the Income-tax Act;

A valid Registration Certificate under Section 80G of the Income-tax Act;

Proof to substantiate a track record of 3 years in undertaking CSR activities such as annual reports, etc.;

Operational / progress reports either quarterly or half yearly, depending on the size and scale of the
project.

To ensure steady progress and proper utilization of CSR amount, the following monitoring mechanism may
be adopted depending upon the size of contribution and the Implementing Agency:
® Review of Funds Utilisation Certificates submitted by the Implementing Agencies.
® The Chief Financial Officer of the Company or any other person responsible for financial management
shall certify the utilisation of funds disbursed for CSR projects for each financial year.

REPORTING

The CSR Committee shall report to the Board of Directors of the Company, the status of the CSR projects/
undertaken by the Company in the Annexure to the Directors’ Report, in the Company’s Annual Report.



“Annexure B”
Salient Features of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy
1. Objective of the Policy:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and this Policy shall be in compliance with Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto. The Key Objectives of
the Committee would be:
® To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managetial
Personnel and Senior Management.
® To evaluate the petformance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the
Board for further evaluation of the Board.
® To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and Senior Management.
e To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to their
effort, performance, dedication, and achievement relating to the Company’s operations.
® To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensute long term sustainability of talented managerial

petsons and create competitive advantage.
2.  Role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is to determine the following:

Appointment criteria and qualifications of Director, KMP and Senior Management;
Term / Tenure of the Directors;

Evaluaton of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel;

Removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel;

Retirement of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel

Principles for Compensation and Risk Alignment

Remuneration to Whole-time / Executive / Managing Director, KMP and Senior Management
Personnel
Malus / Clawback Provisions

® Remuneration to Other employees

For and on behalf of the Board of Ditectots of { j
Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

Anil Chitania - ]_aXe h Navin Shah
Director Whole-Time Director
(DIN: 01082719) (DIN: 02562108)

Place: Mumbai

Date: a 7 JUL 2025



"Annexute C"

Disclosures as per the Secretarial Standard - 1

BOARD MEETINGS

Number of meetings held - 8

Sr. Date of Meeting Total number of Attendance |
No. directors as on date of Number of %o of attendance |
the meeting directors
atte@ed |
1 02.05.2024 4 3 75%
2 12.06.2024 4 4 | 100%
3 06.07.2024 4 B 3 75%
4 09.08.2024 4 - 3 75%
5 27.09.2024 4 4 100%
6 31.10.2024 3 2 66.67% |
7 26.02.2025 3 3 100%
8 - 31.03.2025 3 2 66.67%
COMMITTEE MEETINGS
Number of meetings held - 17
Sr. Type of Meeting Date of Total Attendance |
No. Meeting number of | Number of % of
| directots as directots attendance
| on date of attended
the meeting
[ 1 Audit Committee | 02.05.2024 4 3 75%
[ 2 - Audit Committee 06.07.2024 4 3 75%
3 Audit Committee 09.08.2024 4 3 75%
L4 Audit Committee 27.09.2024 4 4 100%
|5 Audit Committee 31.10.2024 3 2 66.67%
6 Audit Committee 26.02.2024 3 3 100%
7 Nomination & Remuneration | 02.05.2024 4 3 75%
Committee
8 Nomination & Remuneration | 06.07.2024 4 3 75%
Committee
9 Nomination & Remuneration | 09.08.2024 4 3 75%
| Committee
10 | Nomination & Remuneration | 27.09.2024 4 4 100%
i | Committee
11 Nomination & Remuneration | 31.10.2024 3 2 66.67%
Committee
12 CSR Committee 02.05.2024 4 3 75%
13 CSR Committee 31.03.2025 3 2 66.67%
14 IT Strategy Committee 03.05.2024 3 3 100%
15 IT Strategy Committee | 01.07.2024 3 3 100%
16 IT Strategy Committee 28.11.2024 3 2 66.67%
17 IT Strategy Committee ' 31.03.2025 3 2 66.67%




| Attendance of Ditectors in Board and Committee Meetings:

Sr. Name of Number of Meetings Attended:
no Ditector Board Audit Nomination CSR IT |
Committee & Committee Strategy
Remuneration Committee
Committee
1 Ananyashree Birla 3 2 1 0 0
2 Anil Chirania 8 6 5 2 4
3 Vineet Bijendra 5 4 4 1 2
Chattree*
4 Jayesh Navin 8 6 5 2 4
, Shah | _|

*Note: Mr. Vineet Bijendra Chattree resigned from the position of Director of the company w.e.f. 27
September 2024.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

hNdrts o \
Anil Chitrania _’Eel Navin Shah

Director Whole-Time Director
(DIN: 01082719) (DIN: 02562108)

Place: Mumbai

Date: 0 7 JUL 2023
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MMJB & Associates LLP

Company Secretaries

803-804, 8™ Floor, Ecstasy, Citi of Joy, JSD Road, Mulund - West, Mumbai — 400080, (T) 022- 31008600
LLPIN: AAR-9997

FORM NO. MR.3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year Ended March 31, 2025
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Office no 1,2,3,4, Ground floor, Pushpak CHSL,
Malaviya Road, Vile Parle (East),

Mumbai - 400057, Maharashtra.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Svatantra Micro Housing Finance
Corporation Limited (hereinafter called “the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in
a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Auditor’s Responsibility:

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance of the applicable laws and
maintenance of records based on audit. We have conducted the audit in accordance with the
applicable Auditing Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The
Auditing Standards requires that the Auditor shall comply with statutory and regulatory
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 (hereinafter called the ‘audit period’)
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
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We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made there under;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings; (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act'): -

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015; (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit
period)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2021; (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period) and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018.
(Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period)
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and amendments made thereunder, to the extent
applicable to the Company. (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period)

During the Audit Period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. as mentioned above.

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company
and on the examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-
check basis, the Company has generally complied with' the following law applicable
specifically to the Company. The appointment of Independent Directorsin the IT Strategy
Committee, in alignment with the RBI Master Direction on Information Teclmology Governance, Risk,
Controls and Assurance Practices dated November 07, 2023 is currently in process, as represented by
the Management of the Cormpany:

1. Reserve Bank of India Master Direction/Guidelines, as applicable to Non-Banking
Financial Companies, including the following:

2. National Housing Bank and Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company -
Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the audit period were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors for all the schedule Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at shorter notice for which necessary approval were
obtained as per applicable provision and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board,
as the case may be.

We further report that there are systems and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations, and guidelines. The adequacy and efficacy shall read in context of
reporting as specified in the report.
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We further report that, during the audit period, the Company has passed Special resolution
in Annual General Meeting held on August 31, 2024 to borrow up to an amount not exceeding
¥ 3,500 Crore at any point of time under Section 180(1)(c) of the Act.

For MMJB & Associates LLP
Company Secretaries

ICSI UIN: L2020MH006700

Peer Review Cert. No.: 2826/2022

Digitally signed
DEEPTI by DEEPTI AMEY
AMEY KULKARNI

Date: 2025.07.07

KULKARNI 1822523 <05'30°

Deepti Kulkarni

Designated Partner

ACS No. 34733

CP No. 22502 Date: July 7, 2025
UDIN: A034733G000728723 Place: Mumbai

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and
forms an integral part of this report.
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‘Annexure A’
To,
The Members,
Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Office no 1,2,3,4, Ground floor, Pushpak CHSL,
Malaviya Road, Vile Parle (East),
Mumbai-400057, Maharashtra.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the company.

For MM]JB & Associates LLP
Company Secretaries

ICSI UIN: L.2020MH006700

Peer Review Cert. No.: 2826/2022

Digitally signed by
DEEPTI AM EY DEEPTI AMEY KULKARNI
Date: 2025.07.07
KU LKARNI 18:25:53 +05'30"

Deepti Kulkarni

Designated Partner

ACS No. 34733

CP No. 22502 Date: July 7, 2025
UDIN: A034733G000728723 Place: Mumbai
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“Annexure E”
Related Party Transactions Policy
OBJECTIVE

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation (“SMHFC”), had
adopted the following policy (the “policy”) and procedutes with regard to Related Party Transactions
(“RPT”) w.e.f. June 1, 2017 (duly approved by the Boatd at its meeting held on May 29, 2017). This policy
is framed as per requirement of the National Housing Bank (NHB) Notification No. NHB. HFC. CG-
DIR.1/MD & CEO/2016 dated 9% February 2017. The objective of this policy and procedute is to ensure
that transactions between SMHFC and its related parties are based on principles of transparency and arm’s
length pricing as provided under the section 188 of the Companies Act 2013. Likewise, this policy aims at
preventing and providing guidance in situations of potential-conflict of interests in the implementation of

transactions involving such related parties.

1. DEFINITTIONS:

a) “Audit Committee” means Committee of Board of Directors of SMHFC constituted under Section 177
of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) “Related Party” shall mean a person or entity that is related to the company as defined under Section
2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013.

c) “Related Party Transaction” shall mean all transactions as defined under section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013

d) “Arm’s Length Transaction” means a transaction between two Related Parties that is conducted as if
they were unrelated, so that there is no conflict of interest (as provided under the section 188 of the
Companies Act 2013).

) “Annual Consolidated Turnover” is defined as Total Income (i.e. Interest earned plus Other Income)
of the last audited Consolidated Financial Statements of SMHFC.

2. POLICY:
All Related Party Transactions must be refetred to the Audit Committee for approval in accordance with

this Policy.

3. IDENTIFICATION OF RELATED PARTY AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

A Related Party will be brought to the attention of the Management and the Boatd/Audit Committee’s
attention by the Legal and Secretarial Department at least on an annual basis. The Legal and Secretatial
Department needs to inform any change in the Related Party List to Functional teams of SMHFC to
identify the Related Party Transactions.

4. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Every Related Party Transaction shall be subject to the ptior approval of the Audit Committee whether
at a meeting or by resolution by way of circulation. Any member of the Audit Committee who has a
potential interest in any Related Party Transaction shall abstain from discussion and voting on the apptoval
of the related party transaction.

The approval policy framework is given below:



Audit Committee Board Approval Shareholder's
Approval Approval
e AllRelated Party ® Related Party Transactions | ®  Approval by resolution for:
Transactions referred by Audit > Related Party Transactions
Committee for approval of not in Ordinary Course of
the Board. Business or not on arm's
e Related Party Transactions length basis and crosses
as required under the threshold limit as prescribed
statute applicable to under the Companies Act,
SMHFC. 2013 applicable to SMHFC

General Guidance for approval of Related Party Transactions:

The Audit Committee shall be provided with the relevant information of Related Party Transactions in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, the Rules made thereunder as amended
from time to time or as requested by the Audit Committee. Where a Board approval is required, the
information required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, shall be provided.
In determining whether to approve a Related Party Transaction, the Audit Committee shall consider
(among other aspects it deems relevant), if thete are cleatly demonstrable reasons from SMHFC’s business
point of view, to enter into a transaction with a Related Party.

5. DECISION REGARDING TRANSACTION IN ORDINARY COURSE OF BUSINESS AND AT
ARM’S LENGTH:

The Audit Committee and the Board shall, after considering the matetials placed before them, will judge
if the transaction is in the ordinary course of business and meets the arm’s length requirements.

6. OMNIBUS APPROVAL BY AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
In case of certain frequent/ repetitive/ regular/ transactions/ with Related Parties which are in the ordinary
course of business of SMHFC, the Audit Committee may grant an omnibus approval for such Related
Party Transactions proposed to be entered into by SMHFC. The approval shall be valid for a period of
one year - however the same needs to be ratified by the board at the next board meeting.

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS NOT APPROVED UNDER THIS POLICY:

In the event SMHFC becomes aware of a Related Party Transaction with a Related Party that has not been
approved under this Policy priot to its consummation, SMHFC would obtain post facto approval from
the Audit Committee. In case SMHFC is not able to take prior approval from the Audit Committee, such
a transaction shall not be deemed to violate this Policy, ot be invalid or unenforceable, so long as the
transaction is brought to the Audit Committee as promptly as reasonably practical after it is entered into
ot after it becomes reasonably apparent that the transaction is covered by this policy.

The Audit Committee shall consider all of the relevant facts and circumstances regatding the Related Party
Transaction, and shall evaluate all options available to SMHFC, including ratification, revision, or
termination of the Related Party Transaction. In any case, where the Audit Committee determines not to
ratify a Related Party Transaction that has been commenced without approval, the Audit Committee, as
approptiate, may direct additional actions including, but not limited to, immediate discontinuation or
rescission of the transaction. In connection with any review of a Related Party Transaction, the Audit



Committee has authority to modify or waive any procedural requitements of this Policy.

8. DISCLOSURE OF THE POLICY:
This Policy has been uploaded on the website of SMHFC at htips:/ / . policies

9. POLICY REVIEW:

This Policy is established w.e.f. June 1, 2017, based on the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as
per requirement of the NHB Notification No. NHB. HFC. CG-DIR.1/MD & CEQ/2016 dated 9%
February 2017. In case of any subsequent changes in the provisions of the Act and the Rules framed
thereunder, the Act and its Rules would prevail over the Policy and the provisions in the Policy would be
modified in due course to make it consistent with law. The Boatd shall have the right to amend the Policy
from time to time, based on recommendations of Audit Committee. The Policy shall be reviewed every
year along with the other policies of the company. Howevet, it shall be reviewed eatlier if need arises for
the same and/ or under special circumstances, for example a change in law.

For and on behalf of the Boatrd of Directors of o Y
Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited '|

N-0Clen ta . \

Anil Chirania Jayesh Navin Shah
Director "~ Whole-Time Director
(DIN: 01082719) (DIN: 02562108)

Place: Mumbai

Date: 0 7 JUL 2025



“Annexure F”

Particulars of contracts/arrangements made with related parties

FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as on March 31, 2018)
This Form pertains to the disclosure of particulats of contracts/atrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain atm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis
There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended March 31,
2025, which were not at arm’s length basis.

Details of material contracts or artangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

@ © )
(a) (b) © Salient terms of the | Date(s) | Amoun
Name(s) of the Nature of Duration of the contracts or of t paid
related party contracts/arrangements/ | contracts/arrangements arrangements o approval as
and Nature of transacti ogns / transactigns transactions by the advanc
relationship including the value, | Board, if es, if
if any: any: any:
Service Provider Agreement Sl\% to
Toavatl services of Svatantra a sersicye fee
Svatantra identifying prospective of 7.60% plus
Microfin Private | customets and verifying the . ]ica.ble taI;(es on
Limited eligibility of such customers P Ehe total Loan
Common based on the criteria | .
Directors i.e. indicated by SMHFC and 60 rnf)nths fro.m the amount disbursed to
Me. Vineet further facilitate enrolment Effective Date i.e. 13th the clients referred by | 09.08.2024 No
Byjendra Chattree of the customers on the August 2024 Svatantea.
and SMHEC platform. The fee Rest of the terms as
Ms. Ananyashree will be subject to revision the Service
Birla. once in every financial year pet N

till the time contract is valid
or earlier as required.

Provider Agreement
dated 13th August
2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Cotporation Limited

N-Ocleaso

Anil Chirania
Director
(DIN: 01082719)

Place: Mumbai

Date: D 7 JUL Zuza

Jayesh Navin Shah
Whole-Time Ditector
(DIN: 02562108)




“Annexure G”
Management Discussion and Analysis Report - FY 2024-25

In accordance with the Reserve Bank of India’s Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company —
Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 (para 4.7 of Annex IV), the following section
presents the Management Discussion and Analysis Report (MDAR), forming an integral part of the Annual
Report of Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Cotpotation Ltd. (SMHFC)

A. Industry structure and Industry structure and developments.

India’s housing finance ecosystem witnessed calibrated growth during FY 2024-25, with affordable
housing loans emerging as a key focus area for both policymakers and financiers. Despite economic
headwinds, the affordable housing finance segment grew by ~9.4% YoY, fuelled by increasing urbanization
in Tier IT and III towns and evolving bortower aspirations.

Opver the past year, central and state governments have pushed for inclusive housing development through
the PMAY (Urban) mission, encouraging both BLC (Beneficiary-Led Construction) and AHP (Affordable
Housing in Partnership) schemes. While implementation speed varies by region, these schemes continue
to present opportunities for targeted lending.

According to CareEdge Ratings, the affordable housing finance sector in India is projected to experience
a robust growth of approximately 30% in FY 2024-25. This growth is attributed to factors such as an
improving macroeconomic environment, increased demand for affordable housing, and supportive

government policies.

Crucially, non-banking HFCs like SMHFC continue to lead when it comes to lending to informal segment
customers—nearly 60% of the sector’s informal income housing credit is soutced via NBFC-HFCs,

underscoring out unique positioning.

B. Opportunities and Threats.

Oppottunities;

® Rising demand for formal housing credit in underbanked geographies.
® Increasing government focus on last-mile homeownership through schemes for EWS and LIG.

@ Adoption of technology in underwriting and field operations for lean scalability.

Threats:
® Continued macroeconomic volatility affecting liquidity and borrowing costs.
® Evolving regulatory compliance norms increases operational rigor. -
¢ Competitive intensity from larger HFCs and banks entering the affordable housing space.
® Dependency on external funding channels and interest rate cycles.

C. Segment-wise or product-wise performance.

SMHFC remains primarily focused on the individual housing loan (IHL) segment targeting EWS, LIG,
and informal income households. The Company disbursed a total of ¥ 412.50 crore (73% of the total
disbursements of X 568.46 Crotes) in FY25, catering largely to affordable housing projects which includes
both private and government projects



Segment Highlights:

® EWS Segment:397.89 crore disbursed — focused on low-ticket, high-touch lending.
® LIG Segment: 322349 crore disbursed — primarily self-employed borrowers in semi-urban
clusters.
Private Developer Projects: Increased traction in compliant low-cost housing clusters.
® Government Projects: Over 2,000 units funded across 8 states, aligned with national housing
priorities.
D. Outlook

Looking ahead, Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Cotporation Limited is well-positioned to capitalize
on emerging opportunities in the affordable housing sector. We remain committed to:

Expansion: We will continue to expand our presence in underserved markets, reaching more
families in need of housing finance solutions.

Innovation: Innovation will remain at the forefront of our strategy as we introduce new products
and services to better meet the evolving needs of our customers.

Impact: Our focus on creating sustainable social impact will guide our efforts as we strive to
improve the lives of our customers and contribute to broader community development goals.
Customer Service: Customers we serve will always remain the center around which we shall
develop our new products, aligh our processes, and ensure they get the best service in class.
Training & Development: For achieving all of the above, it is of paramount importance that we
do not under emphasize the need and impact of a well-trained and knowledgeable workforce. We
have, in the last year, invested substantially in resources and time to create a robust training
regimen in the organization. We shall continue to build on this.

E. Risks and Concerns

Liquidity and interest rate risk
Being a financial organisation, SMHFC is susceptible to market-related risks such as liquidity risk,

interest rate risk and funding risk. Such risk management relating to maturity mismatch of assets
and liabilities, interest rate gaps/ sensitivity is assigned to the Asset Liability Committee (ALCO)
to monitor these risks on an ongoing basis. Being in a long-term funding business SMHFC
maintains adequate balances of undrawn lines and cash equivalents for disbursements, repayments,
and other payments. This risk is accentuated by extension of moratorium.

Operational risk

SMHFC uses information technology extensively in its operations. The Company attempts to
mitigate operational risk by maintaining a system of internal controls, establishing systems and
procedutes to monitor transactions, extensive employee training, maintaining key back-up
procedures, undertaking regular contingency planning.

Credit Risk

The Company manages credit risk by using a set of credit norms and policies, including a standard
credit appraisal policy. All functions of credit are managed in house right from soutcing,
verification to credit bureau checks. SMHFC has developed an internal legal and technical
evaluation team with independent functions to make credit decisions more robust and in line to

manage collateral risk.

Credit risks are minimized by having an established credit appraisal system in place, prescribing



exposure limits, and periodic review of the portfolio. SMHFC petforms credit bureau checks, field
vetification, stringent legal and technical due diligence etc. which have helped to reduce delinquencies.
The recovery mechanism is now well established thtough recourse under the SARFAEST Act.

® Internal control systems and their adequacy
The Company has put in place an adequate internal control system to safeguard all assets and
ensure operational efficiency. The Company also has an internal auditor to conduct the testing of
the Internal Financial Control along with ongoing internal audits, covering all aspects of
operations, and adherence to internal policies and procedutes as well as to regulatory and legal
requirements. The integrated Loan Management System and the Accounting System has inbuilt
maker checker systems in place for recording and authorising transactions on the system. The
Internal Financial Controls Testing Report and the internal audit reports are reviewed regularly by
the Audit Committee of the Board, and whetever necessaty, intetnal control systems are

strengthened, and corrective actions are immediately taken.

F. Internal Control Systems and Their Adequacy
® Maker-checker validations embedded in Loan Management and Accounting Systems.

® Regular internal audits and financial controls testing.
® Reviewed by the Audit Committee with immediate corrective action plans.
® Policy governance aligned to RBI/NHB regulatory framework.

G. Discussion on Financial Performance with Respect to Operations
Revenue: X 283.16 Cr (118% YoY)

Net Profit: X 23.27 Cr (12.0% YoY)

Gross NPA: X 65.57 Cr (2.89% of total portfolio)

Net NPA: X 47.85 Cr (2.11% of total portfolio)

Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR): 31.93% \

Funding raised: Total long-term debt ¥ 1,954.2 Cr

Diversified lender base: 30+ PSU & Private Banks and NBFCs

G1 Financial Performance

During the year under review, Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited has demonstrated
resilience and consolidated the impact of the various initiatives taken in the last few years. Despite the
economic challenges, we have achieved robust growth in key financial metrics. Our tevenue increased by
17.58% to reach Rs. 283.16 Crores, driven by a steady expansion in out loan portfolio and strategic cost
management initiatives. Our profitability remained stable, with net profits growing by 2.04% to Rs. 23.27

Crores.

SMHFC primarily deals in the segment of providing housing loans for the financially excluded EWS/ LIG
households in the informal segment. In terms of lending operations, cumulative housing loan sanctions
aggregated Rs. 4308.37 Cr. (up 14% from Rs. 3781.52 Cr. at the end of the previous financial year — mostly
to lower income, urban families who are generally excluded from the mainstream banking sector. The total
loan outstanding figure was Rs. 2,268.13 Cr. (growth of 11.85% ovet Rs. 2027.84 Cr. at the end of the
previous financial year). The Company currently operates in 11 states — Maharashtra, Gujarat, Madhya
Pradesh, Rajasthan, West Bengal, Chhattisgarh, Tamil Nadu, Telangana, Andhra Pradesh, Orissa and
Haryana and 1 Union Territory — Daman and Diu.



In terms of portfolio quality, the Company had 1,234 (PY 889) loan accounts as on year end - March 31,
2025 - which were classified as non-performing assets (“NPAs”) per the prudential guidelines issued by
the RBI / NHB. The amount of such Gross NPAs was Rs. 65.57 Cr. (PY Rs. 42.57 Cr.) which was 2.89%
(PY 2.10%) of the total loan portfolio of the Company as at March 31, 2025. The Company has created
necessary provisions in accordance with the RBI & NHB Directions, after which Net NPAs stood at Rs.
47.85 Cr. (PY Rs. 32.30 Ct.) and 1.59% (PY 1.60%) of the total loan portfolio as at March 31, 2025.

The net worth increased to Rs. 386.05 Cr. (PY Rs. 347.35 Cr.). The Company increased its long-term debt
to Rs. 1954.2 Cr. (PY Rs. 1749.41 Cr.) of which approx. 14.02% continues to be tefinanced by the NHB.
Other lenders to your Company include the nationalized bank such as State Bank of India, Union Bank of
India, Punjab National Bank, Canara Bank, Bank of Baroda, UCO Bank, Indian Bank, Bank of Maharashtra
and Bank of India; commercial banks such as HDFC Bank Ltd., Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd., DCB Bank
Ltd., ICICI Bank Limited, Karnataka Bank Ltd., South Indian Bank Ltd, Federal Bank Ltd, Yes Bank Ltd,
IndusInd Bank Ltd, The Karur Vysya Bank Ltd., IDBI Bank Ltd., Axis Bank Ltd., RBL Bank Limited,
CSB Bank Limited, Bandhan Bank Limited, and HSBC Bank Limited; and NBFCs such as Bajaj Finance
Ltd, A.K. Capital Finance Ltd and Sundaram Home Finance Limited. The Company’s major housing loan
portfolio continues to qualify as a priority sector as defined by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”). Based
on our excellent relationships with our cutrent bankers and the company’s financial and portfolio
petformance we are confident of arranging additional debt to cover projected growth plans.

The Company is very well capitalised with a capital adequacy ratio at 31.93% of tisk weighted assets, as
against the minimum requirement of 15%.

G.2 Customer segments break up:

Customer Segment - No.of Loans | Principal 0/S | %
Salaried 24858 814.46 35.91%
Self Employed 22110 916.57 40.41%
Both 11640 522.69 23.04%
Builder Loan* 7 14.40 0.64%
Grand Total 58615 2,268.13 100%

G.3 Credit Rating:

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited is amongst the few entities in the NBFC/ HFC
space which has been upgraded by CARE and sustained by CRISIL at A+. This is a recognition of the
Governance, Fiscal prudence, and Parentage.

CARE EDGE has recently upgraded the rating of the company to AA- which further exemplifies the
performance and the governance practices of the company.

Acknowledgement

We extend our sincete appreciation to all employees, partners, and stakeholders for their continued support
and trust in Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited. Your commitment and collaboration
have been instrumental in advancing our mission to address the housing needs of underserved
communities across India. The progress we celebrate today belongs to all of us.

Conclusion



Fiscal Year 2024-25 brought milestone accomplishments and meaningful strides for Svatantra Micro
Housing Finance Corporation Limited. As we move ahead, we remain focused on widening our reach,
deepening our impact, and shaping housing finance that is both inclusive and sustainable. Together, we
will continue turning aspirations of secure, affordable homes into reality.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Cotporation Limited [,' )
\
Af ‘NQ (L(M - \/

Anil Chirania Jayegh Navin Shah
Director T Whole-Time Director
(DIN: 01082719) (DIN: 02562108)

Place: Mumbai

Date: 0 7 JUL 2025



“Annexure H”

Corporate Governance Disclosure - FY 2024-25

The following: disclosures for the Financial Year 2024-25 are in pursuance to the RBI Circular vide
DOR.CRE.REC. No.60/03.10.001/2021-22 dated October 22, 2021, on ‘Scale Based Regulation (SBR): A
Revised Regulatory Framework’ for NBFCs, read with RBI Circular vidle DOR.ACCREC.
No0.20/21.04.018/2022-23 dated April 19, 2022, on Disclosures in Financial Statements - Notes to
Accounts of NBFCs.

1) COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

] 'Capacity Number | Remuneration
(i.e. of No. of
Executiv | Board shares
SN e/ Non- ~ Meetings | No. held in
Name | Director |[Executiv] DIN | of and
of since e/ other| Salary convertib
Ditecto Chairma Ditec| and Sitting Commi le
r | n/ Attend| tor | other Feession | instrume
Promotet Held] ed |shipsicompens (InkIn Rs.) nts held
nominee ation Rs.) in the
/ | Compan
Indepen | y
_ dent) . (In Rs.)
1. |Ananyas [15/09/201|Chairpers 06625036 3 12 Nil Nil Nil 1 shate of |
lhree 8 on and Rs. 10 /-
Birla Non- as
Executive Nominee
Director Shareholde
r
2. [Vineet 15/09/201 Non- |07962531 5 2 Nil Nil Nil Nil
Bijendra 8 Executive |
Chattree Director
w.e.f
23.09.202
3
3. [Anil 15/09/201 Non- |08396893 8 18 Nil Nil Nil 1 share of
Chirania 8 Executive | Rs. 10 /-
Ditector as
Nominee
Shareholde
r
4. |layesh [12/02/202 Executive|02562108 8 Nil [Rs. Nil Nil Nil
Navin 4 Director 66,00,000/ -
[ Shah | | |
Details of change in composition of the Board during the current and previous Financial Yeat:
Capacity '
Name of Director (i.e., Executive/ Non- Nature of change | Effective
No. Executive/ Chairman/ (resignation, date
Promoter nominee/ appointment)
| Independent) -
1. | Vineet Bijendra Chattree | Non-Executive Ditrector Resignation 27.09.2024
| |




There is no inter-se relation among the Directots of the Company.

2) COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD AND THEIR COMPOSITION

L.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

| Member of Capacity (i.e., Number of | No. of shares
SL Name of Committee Executive/ Non- Meetings of the | held in the
No. Director since Executive/ Committee NBFC
Chairman/ Promoter | Held |Attended
nominee/
_Independent) .
1. Ananyashree | 24/09/2018 | Chairperson and Non- 6 2 1 share held as
Birla Executive Director Nominee
- Shareholder
2. Vineet Bijendra | 24/09/2018 | Non-Executive Director 6 4 Nil
Chattree * | w.e.f. 23.09.2023
3. Anil Chirania | 24/09/2018 | Non- Executive Director 6 6 1 share held as
Nominee
B N - Shareholder
4. Jayesh Navin | 12/02/2024 Executive Ditector 6 6 Nil
‘ Shah
|

*Note: Mr. Vineet Bijendra Chattree resigned from the position of Director of the company w.e.f. 27t
September 2024 and the committee was re-constituted w.e.f. 27 September 2024 consisting of following

membets:

- Ananyashree Birla
- Anil Chirania
- Jayesh Navin Shah

Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee includes:

a) The recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors
of the company;

b) Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process;

) Examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon,

d) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

e) Scrutiny of inter-cotporate loans and investments;

f)  Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, whetever it is necessaty;

g Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

h) To redress the genuine concerns / grievance reccived by the Audit Committee under the Vigil
Mechanism from the directors and employees of the Company;

) The Audit Committee shall have powers to act in accordance Section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013;

j)  Members of the committee shall elect a chairman from amongst themselves;

k) The Audit Committee shall have meetings periodically as it may deem fit;

) All the decision of the Committee shall be taken by vote of majority;

m) The Audit Committee shall invite such of the executives to be present at the meetings of the
Committee whenever required by it;

n) The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as Sectetary to the Audit Committee.



ii. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

| Member of Capacity | Number of No. of
SL. \Name of Ditector | Committee | (i.e., Executive/ Non- Meetings of shares held
No. since Executive/ Chairman/ | the Committee in the
Promoter nominee/ Held | Attended NBFC
Independent)
1. | Ananyashree Birla | 24/09/2018 Chairperson and Non- 5 1 1 share held as
Executive Director Nominee
Shareholder
2. Vineet Bijendra 24/09/2018 | Non-Executive Director 5 4 Nil
Chattree* w.e.f. 23.09.2023
3. Anil Chirania 24/09/2018 | Non- Executive Director 5 5 1 share held as|
Nominee
| _ . Shareholder
4. |]Jayesh Navin Shah | 12/02/2024 Executive Director 5 5 Nil
|

*Note: Mr. Vineet Bijendra Chattree resigned from the position of Director of the company w.e.f. 27t
September 2024 and the committee was re-constituted w.e.f. 27t September 2024 consisting of following
members:

- Ananyashree Bitla

- Anil Chirania

- Jayesh Navin Shah

Terms of Reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee includes:

a) To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management.

b) To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary repott to
the Board for further evaluation of the Board.

¢) To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management.

d) To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to
their effort, performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations.

e) To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented
managerial persons and create competitive advantage.

To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a directot.

g To identify persons who are qualified to become Director and petsons who may be appointed
in Key Managerial and Senior Management positions in accordance with the criteria laid down
in this policy.

h) To recommend to the Board, appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel.

iii. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Member of | Capacity | Number of No. of |
SL Name of Committee | (i.e., Executive/ Non- Meetings of shares ‘
No. Director since Executive/ Chairman/| the Committee




Promoter nominee/ | Held| Attended | held in
Independent) the NBFC
1 Ananyashree Bitla | 24/09/2018 Chairperson and Non- 2 0 1 share held
Executive Director as Nominee
Shareholder
2. Vineet Bijendra 24/09/2018 | Non-Executive Director 2 1 ' Nil
' Chattree* w.e.f. 23.09.2023
3. Anil Chirania 24/09/2018 | Non- Executive Director| 2 2 1 shate held
as Nominee
- Shareholder
4. | Jayesh Navin Shah | 12/02/2024 Executive Director 2 L 2 Nil

“Note: Mr. Vineet Bijendra Chattree resigned from the position of Director of the company w.e.f. 274
September 2024 and the committee was re-constituted w.e.f. 27t September 2024 consisting of following
members:

- Ananyashree Birla

- Anil Chitania

- Jayesh Navin Shah

Tetms of Reference of the Cotporate Social Responsibility Committee includes:

a) To formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR policy which shall indicate the activities to
be undertaken by the Company as per the Companies Act, 2013;
b) To teview and recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities to be
undertaken by the company;
¢) To monitor the CSR policy of the Company from time to time;
d) Any other matter as the CSR Committee may deem appropriate after approval of the Board of
Directors or as may be directed by the Board of Directors from time to time.
(iv) IT STRATEGY COMMITTEE
' [ ' Member of Capacity | Number of No. of |
SL Name of Committee | (i.e., Executive/ Non- Meetings of shares
No. Director since Executive/ Chairman/| the Committee held in
Promotet nominee/ | Held| Attended | the NBFC
Independent)
1 Ananyashree Bitla* | 27/09/2024 | Non-Executive Director 2 0 1 share held
as Nominee
i _ | Shareholder:
2. Vineet Bijendra 01/04/2024 | Non-Executive Director | 4 2 Nil
Chattree* (Chairman)
3. Anil Chirania 01/04/2024 | Non-Executive Director 4 4 1 share held
as Nominee
| _ |Shareholder
4. ‘ Jayesh Navin Shah ‘ 01/04/2024 Executive Director | 4 4 Nil

*Note: Mr. Vineet Bijendra Chattree resigned from the position of Director of the company w.e.f. 27t
September 2024 and the committee was re-constituted w.e.f. 27t September 2024 by inducting
Ms. Ananyashree Bitla in place of Mr. Vineet Bijendra Chattree with immediate effect, consisting of
following members:



- Ananyashree Bitla
- Anil Chirania
- Jayesh Navin Shah

Tetms of Reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee includes:

a) Ensure that the Company has put an effective I'T strategic planning process in place;

b) Guide in preparation of IT Strategy and ensure that the IT Strategy aligns with the overall
strategy of the Company towards accomplishment of its business objectives;

) Satisfy itself that the IT Governance and Information Security Governance structure fosters
accountability, is effective and efficient, has adequate skilled resources, well defined objectives
and unambiguous responsibilities for each level in the organization;

d) Ensure that the Company has put in place processes for assessing and managing T and
cybersecurity risks;

¢) Ensure that the budgetary allocations for the TT function (including for IT security), cyber
security are commensurate with the Company IT maturity, digital depth, threat environment
and industry standatds and are utilized in a manner intended for meeting the stated objectives;
and

f)  Review, at least on an annual basis, the adequacy and effectiveness of the Business Continuity
Planning and Disaster Recovery Management of the Company.

v) GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

SN Type of Meeting Date and Place Special Resolutions passed
(Annual/ Extra-
Ordinary) |
1. Annual General 31t August 2024 Increase in Borrowing Limit
Meeting & under section 180(1)(c) of
Office no 1,2,3,4, Ground floor, Companies Act 2013
Pushpak CHSL, Malaviya Road, Vile
Patle (East) Mumbai 400057. | ‘

2) DETAILS OF NON-COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS OF COMPANIES ACT,
2013

During the financial year under review, there has been no default in compliance with the requirements of
the Companies Act, 2013, including with respect to compliance with accounting and secretarial standards.

3) DETAILS OF PENALTIES AND STRICTURES

During the financial year under review, no penalties or stricture has been imposed on the Company by the
Resetve Bank of India or any other statutory authority.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of ( \
Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

A< o

Anil Chirania __hty_'g_sl Navin Shah

Director Whole-Time Director
(DIN: 01082719) (DIN: 02562108)

Place: Mumbai

Date: () 7 JUL 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To,
The Members of

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Svatantra Micro Housing
Finance Corporation Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
31 March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income,
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the
Financial Statements")

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standard prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015 as amended (Ind
AS) and other the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at 31 March 2025, its profit and other comprehensive income, the
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under Section 143(10)} of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.
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S BHANDARI & CO LLP

Chartered Accountants

Continuation Sheet

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters
to be communicated in our report.

impairment of loans and advances

S. No. | Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in
our audit
1 Impairment;f Loans a -
| Eé_ccgnition and measurement of | e

¢ Understanding management's
processes, systems and controls

f involve significant management ' implemented in relation to
'| judgement. Under Ind AS 109, l impairment allowance process.

: Financial Instruments, allowance

- for loan losses is determined using

| Expected Credit Loss (ECL) | e Assessing the design and

estimation model. The estimation
of ECL on financial instruments
involves significant management
judgement and estimates.

The key areas where we identified
greater levels of management
judgement and therefore increased
levels of audit focus in the
Company’s estimation of ECL are:

» Timely identification and
classification of the impaired
loans, including classification of
assets to stage 1, 2, or 3 using
criteria in accordance with Ind
AS 109 which also include
considering the impact of RBI's

regulatory circulars.

implementation of key internal
financial controls over loan
impairment process used to
calculate the impairment charge.

» Testing of review controls over
measure.nent of impairment
allowances and disclosures in Ind
AS financial statements.

+ Evaluation of the appropriateness
of the impairment principles used
by management based on the
requirements of Ind AS 109, our
business understanding and
industry practice,

o Test of details over of calculation

» The segmentation of financial of 1p airment  allowance for
assets when their ECL is assessiny  the completeness,
assessed on a collective basis. accuracy and relevance of data.

> Inherent judgmental models are | ¢« Model calculation testing through

used to estimate ECL which
involves determining
probabilities of default (“PD”),

Loss given Default ("LGD"), and |

Exposures at Default ("EAD"))
based on the default history of
loans, subsequent recoveries
made, security valuation and

reperformance where possible.

s The appropriateness of
management's judgments was
also independently reconsidered
in respect of calculation
methodologies, segmentation,
economic factors, the period of
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other relevant factors. The PD
and the LGD are the key drivers
of estimation complexity in the
ECL and as a result these are
considered as the rost
significant judgmental aspect of
the Company's modelling
approach.

Economic scenarios, Ind AS
109 requires - the Company to
measure ECL on an unbiased
forward-looking basis reflecting
a range of future economic
conditions. Significant
management judgement is
applied in determining the
economic scenarios used and
the probability weights applied
to them and

Assessment  of  qualitative
factors having an impact on the
credit risk

The effect of these matters is that, |

as part of our risk assessment, we
determined that the impairment of
loans and advances to customers
has a high degree of estimation.

The disclosures (including

disclosures prescribed by RBI) |

regarding the Company's
application of Ind AS 109 are key to
explaining the significant

judgements and material inputs to
the Ind AS 109 ECL results.

Refer Note 2 (k}, Note 5, 38{c¢) and
48.2 to the financial statements.

IT Systems aud Controls

historical loss rates used,
existence of recovery process plan
in the event of default and the
valuation of recovery assets,

Assessed whether the disclosures
on key judgements, assumptions
and quantitative data with
respect .0 impairment of loans
(including restructuring related
disclosures) in the financial
statements are in accordance
with the requirements of Ind AS
109 and Ind AS 107 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures

The information syste_rn is a critical

component of Company’s
operations, enabling  efficient
processing of transactions,

safeguarding of information, and
supporting decision-making. The
financial accounting and reporting
systems of the Company are also
fundamentally reliant on IT

Principal Audit Procedures

Obtained an understanding of the
Company's IT related control
environment, IT applications and
databases relevant for the
purpose of our audit of the
financial statements.
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Also, obtained an understanding
of the changes that were made to
the IT applications during the
audit period.

considering the pervasive nature of
IT environment and the scale and
complexity of the IT architecture. ¢ Our audit procedures included
assessment and identification of
key IT applications, and further
verifying, testing, and reviewing
the design and operating
effectiveness of the IT system,
applications, databases, that are
important to financial reporting

and various interfaces,
configuration and other identified
general, application and

operational controls based on
reports and other financial and
non-financial information
generated from the system on a
test check basis. In this regard
also relied on work of the
Internal /I%C auditor.

|e The implications of actual status
[ of functioning of IT system and
related controls were assessed
considering the materiality levels
and the significance of their
impact over financial reporting. |

Information Other than the financial statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in Board's
Report including Annexures to Board's Report and Shareholder's Information but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained during our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read such other information identified above, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those
charged with governance.
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Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including total
Comprehensive Income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for the safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibility for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatemerit of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

(W)
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¢ Evaluate the appropriatcness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates «nd related disclosures made by Board of Directors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Director’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or' conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statement, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statement
represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work, and (ii) to evaluate the effect of
any identified misstatements in the financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regaiding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to cutweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and R:zulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued
by the Central Govern:r: .t of India in terms of sub-section (11} of Section 143 of
the Act, we give in tl.© “Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the “:rder, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: m—
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a)

b)

d)

g)

We have scught and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as, it appears from our examination of those books;

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account,

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Scction 133 of the Act, read with the
Companics (Indian Accounting Standards). Rules, 2015 as amended;

On the buasis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31 March 2025 and taken ¢n record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(%) of the Act.

With respect to Uie adequacy of ithe internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in "Annexure B” to this report. Our report
expresses an unmodificd opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the Co:r.pany's internel finarncial control over financial reporting;

With resp: <t to the matter to be incluced inn the Auditors’ Report under section
197(16) «f the Act, as amended, in our opinion and according to the
informaticn and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company tu its directors during the current year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197(16) of the Act.

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

a.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements (Refer Note 42 to the financial statements);

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

There were no amounts whicli were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no [unds (which are maerial either individually or in aggregate) have
been advanced or loaned or invested (cither from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persen(s) or entity(ies), includin:: forcign entities ("Intermediaries"), with
the undcrstanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
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Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics;

(ii) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsocver by or on bchalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guaranice, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and,

(iiij Based on audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(c), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement

e. During the year, the Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend, as such
compliance of section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
integration of an independent and accounting software for maintaining its books of
account. The independent software used for recording of transactions in the
accounting software has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the vear for all relevant transactions recorded.
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of
audit trail feature being tampered with.

Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.

For S Bhandari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 000560C/C400334)

/ I.J (Jai Shanker Prasad Bansal)
P4 Partner
Membership No. 070980
UDIN: 25070980BMOMTW 1985

Date: 12th May 2025
Place: Jaipur
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING OF “REPORT ON
OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENT” OF OUR REPORT ON
EVEN DATE OF SVATANTRA MICTO HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION
LIMITED, FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025

i. According to the information and explanations provided to us by the Company
and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of
audit, we state that-

(a) In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment:

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and
equipment.

B. The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b) The Company has conducted physical verification of all of its fixed assets as
on 31st March 2025 which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets and no discrepancy was
noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deed of immovable properties (other than properties where the
company is the lessee and the lease agreement are duly executed in favour of
the lessee) disclosed in the statement are held in the erstwhile name of the
Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder.

ii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, the company
does not have any inventory. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(ii)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Branch Offices: ; '| )
Mumbai : 201, Neo Corporate Plaza, Ramchandra Lane Extn, Malad West, Mumbai-400064 Q}\/
Cell : +91-98290-66300 | +91-98290-61700 Kbl g
Delhi : A-1/174, First Floor, Safdarjung Enclave, New Delhi - 110029 SSgAR
Cell : +91-99998-87025 | +91-98290-20438
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. According to
the information and explanation given to us, the Company filed monthly returns
or statements as required by the bank and are in agreement with the books of
accounts of the Company.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company:

a.

The Company is a housing finance company primarily engaged in the
business of lending. Accordingly reporting under paragraph 3(iii) (a) of the
order is not applicable.

The investments made, security given and the terms and conditions of the
grant of all the loans and advances in the nature of loans, during the year
are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. The Company,
being a Non-Banking Housing Finance Company, registered under
provisions of RBI Act, 1934 and rules made thereunder, in pursuance of
its compliance with provisions of the said Act Rules, particularly, the
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning Norms,
monitors repayments of principal and payment of interest by its borrowers
as stipulated. In case where repayment of principal and payment of
interest is not received as stipulated, the cognizance thereof is taken by
the Company in course of its periodic regulatory reporting. Refer Note No.
38(C) to the financial statements for summarized details of such
loans/advances which are not repaid by borrowers as per stipulations.
According to the information and explanations made available to us,
reasonable steps are/being taken by the Company for recovery thereof.

In respect of loans and advances in nature of loans granted by the
Company, the total amount overdue for more than ninety days as at March
31, 2025 and the details of the number of such cases, are disclosed in Note
No. 38(C) to the financial statements. The total exposure in stage III loans
amounts to Rs. 6,556.83 Lakhs with respect to 1,234 loan accounts. In
such instances, in our opinion, reasonable steps have been taken by the
Company for recovery of the overdue amount of principal and interest.

As the company is a Non-Banking Finance Company, having principal
business to give loan, thus paragraph 3f(iii)(e) is not applicable.

The company has not granted any loans and advances in the nature of

loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment.
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iv.

vi.

vii.
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According to the information and explanations given to us, and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, in respect
of the loans granted, the company has compiled with the provisions of Sec 185
and 186 of Companies Act, 2013, as applicable. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits during the year from the public to which the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or
any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder apply.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the requirement of
maintenance of cost records specified by the Central Government under section
148 (1) of the Act is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3
(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit:

a. The Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including, Income Tax, Service tax, Goods & Service tax,
cess and other applicable statutory dues with the appropriate authorities
and there are no undisputed statutory dues outstanding as at 31st March
2025 for a period more than six months from the date, they became
payable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
dues of income tax and goods and service tax which have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute
except the following:

Name of the | Nature of Period to Amount (Rs. | Forum where
Statute dues which the | in Lakhs) dispute is
amount pending
relates
Income Tax | Demand of | AY 2017-18 99.71 Commissioner
Act, 1961 Income tax of Income Tax
(Appeals)
r

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no

transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961.

C)
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ix. According to the information and explanations provided to us, lender’s balance
confirmations/statement of accounts received, and the books of account and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

a.

There is no default on the part of the company in the repayment of loans
or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

The company has not been as a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or other lender.

The term loans obtained during the year were applied for the purpose for
which they were raised, other than temporary deployment of borrowings in
Bank Fixed Deposit pending utilization of funds as per respective sanction
terms.

On an overall examination of the Financial Statements of the Company, no
funds raised on short-term basis have been prima facie used for long-term
purposes during the year by the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures.
Accordingly, the provisions of the clause 3 (ix)(e) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures.
Accordingly, the provisions of the clause 3 (ix)(f) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

X. According to the information and explanation given to us: -

a.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence
reporting under paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) during the
year and hence reporting under paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

xi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the books of accounts
& records examined and audit procedure performed, by us, in the normal course
of audit we state that:

(a) No fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year,

nor we have been informed of any such case by the Management.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 nf the Companies Act has

been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and
up to the date of this report.

i
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{c) No whistle blower complaints have been received by the company during the
year.

xii. According to the information and explanations given ‘o us, the Company is not
a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the
details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements (Refer Note No. 35 of financial statement) as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us, we state that:

(@) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system
commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) ‘We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit as
provided to us, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures.

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him and hence the said paragraph of the Order is not
applicable to the company.

xvi. According to the information and explanation given te us:

a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45- IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).

b) The company is a registered Non-Banking Finance Company under section
29A (2) of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 for conducting housing
finance business and having a valid registration certificate from National
Housing Bank.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is
not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company does
not have more than one core investment company within the Group (as
defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016)
and accordingly reporting under paragraph 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable.
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xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by
our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during
the year.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us, on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. According to the information and explanations provided to us and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal ccurse of audit:

a. There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) other than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified
in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso
to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said act.

b. The company has transferred the remaining unspent amount under
subsection (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act (‘the Act’), pursuant to
ongoing projects, to a Special account/fund specified in schedule VII of
the Act, in compliance with provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of
the said Act.

For S Bhandari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
TIRS (FRN: 000560C/C400334)

.I ‘:‘ /
|\ /#/ (Jai Shanker Prasad Bansal)
Partner
Membership No. 070980
UDIN: 25070980BMOMTW 1985

Date: 12t May 2025
Place: Jaipur
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ANNEXURE 'B' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading 'Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements' of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Svatantra
Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction
with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on, the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAT). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Ad, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing

Branch Offices:

Mumbai : 201, Neo Corporate Plaza, Ramchandra Lane Extn, Malad West, Mumbai-400064 ' {
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Charatg(f evalcuatmg the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on

the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasvnable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of
the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regaiding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to further periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S Bhandari & Co LLP

PASIRS Chartered Accountants
opld o
7 NON (FRN: 000560C/C400334)

| @ ; -~
\o\ < (Jai Shanker Prasad Bansal)
Woreg AocS” Partner
Membership No. 070980
UDIN: 25070980BMOMTW 1985

Date: 12t May 2025
Place: Jaipur
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To,

The Board of Directors

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Office No. 1,2,3,4, Ground Floor

Pushpak Co-operative Housing Society Ltd.

Malviya Road, Vile Parle (East)

Mumbai - 400057

Independent Auditors' Additional Report for the year
ended 31 March 2025, pursuant to the requirements
of the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial
Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021 issued by the Reserve Bank of India

1. This report has been issued in accordance with our terms of engagement
with Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited ("the
Company") and in accordance with the requirements of the Master
Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 (the 'Directions') issued by the Reserve
Bank of India (the 'RBI').

2. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Company
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the Statement of
Profit and loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended and notes to the financial statements including the summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and have
issued an unqualified opinion vide our audit report dated 12th May, 2025.

In addition to the said report made under Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the Act) on the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2025 and as required by Master Direction - Non-
Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021 issued by the Reserve Bank of India (the 'RBI'), we report
on the matters specified in paragraph 70 and 71 of the said Directions, to
the extent applicable, as follows:
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Management's and Those Charged with Governance's Responsibility
for the financial statements

3. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other Comprehensive
Income) changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
the safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give &« true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

4. The Management of the Company is also responsible for Compliance with
the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 ('the NHB Act') issued by the
National Housing Bank (the "NHB") and the Diractions issued by the RBI
and for providing all the required information to the RBI/NHB.

Auditors Responsibility

S. Pursuant to the requirements of the Directions, it is our responsibility to
provide reasonable assurance on the matters specified in paras 70 and 71
of the Directions, to the extent applicable to the Company, on the basis of
our audit of the financials statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2025 and examination of books of account and other records
maintained by the Company for the year then ended.

6. We conducted our examination in respect of this certificate in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes
("the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical
requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

%)
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7. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the
Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that
Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other
Assurance and Related and Related Services Engagements, issued by ICAIL

Opinion

8. Based on our audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2025 and examination as above, evidences obtained and the
information and explanations, along with the representations provided by
the Management, we report that:

1. Para 70.1

a. The Company has obtained Certificate of Registration No. 02.0071.09
dated 9th February 2009 issued by the New Delhi Regional office of the
NHB. Further, the Company has been allotted the certificate of
registration No DOR -00071 dated 12 February 2020 from Reserve Bank
of India in lieu of aforesaid registration issued by NHB. The Company
has fulfilled the Principal Business Criteria as specified in Paragraph
4.1.17 of RBI Master Directions.

b. The Company is meeting the required Net Owned Fund Requirements
during the year ended 31 March 2025 as prescribed under section 29A
of the NHB Act;

¢. The Company has complied with the provisions of section 29C of the
NHB Act with respect to the statutory reserves during the year ended 31
March 2025.

d. The total borrowings of the Company are within the limits prescribed
under paragraph 27.2 of the Directions as at 31 March 2025.

e. The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2025 have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under
Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. In preparation of the financial
statements, the prudential norms relating to the income recognition,
accounting standards, assets classification, disclosure on balance sheet,
provisioning norms which are specified in the Directions; have been
complied in accordance with the applicable Ind AS. Further, the
Company has generally complied with prudential norms on loan-to-
value ratio, investment in real estate, exposure to capital markets and
engagement of brokers and concentration of credit/investments as
specified in the Directions as may be applicable for the year ended 31
March 2025.
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f. The Capital Adequacy Ratio as disclosed in the half yearly statutory
returns for the period ended 30th September 2024, submitted to NHB, as
per directions issued by the NHB has been correctly determined and
such ratio is in compliance with the prescribed minimum capital to risk
weighted asset ratio (CRAR);

g As specified in the directions issued by NHB, the company has
submitted its half-yearly statutory returns to the NHB within the
stipulated period.

h. Quarterly Schedule III returns on Statutory Liquid Assets is not
applicabie to Company pursuant to the NHB Circular issued in this
regard.

i. In case of opening of new branches/offices o in the case of closure of
existing branches/offices, the Company has complied with the
requirements of the Directions for the year ended 31 March 2025.

j. The Company has not granted any loan against security of shares or
security of single product - gold jewellery in terms of paragraph 3.1.3
and 3.1.4 of the Master Directions during the year ended March 31,
2025. Further, during the year ended March 31, 2025 the company has
not granted any loan against its own shares in terms of paragraph 18 of
Master Directions.

k. The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the
year ended 31 March 2025.

1. The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on
29 May 2017 has passed a resolution for non-acceptance of any
public deposits.

2. Para 70.2:
Since the Company has Certificate of Registration as Housing
Finance Company and not accepting /holding public deposits, the
matters referred to in Para 70.2 of the Directions are not applicable
to the Cocmpany.

Restrictions on Distribution or Use

9. Our work was performed solely to assist you ior compliance with the
Directions. Our obligations in respect of this report are entirely separate
from, and our responsibilities and liabilities are in no way changed by any
other role we may have as statutory auditors of the Cempany or ctherwise.
Nothing in this report, nor anything said or done in the course of or in
connection with the services that are subject of this report, will extent any
duty of care we may have in our capacity as statutory auditors of the
Company.
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10.This report is addressed to and provided to the Board of Directors of the
Company pursuant to our obligations under the Directions requiring us to
submit on the additional matters as stated in the aforesaid directions, and
should not be used, referred to or distributed for any other purpose or to
any other person without our prior written consent. Accordingly, we do not
accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or
to any other person to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands
it may come without our prior consent in writing,

For S Bhandari & CO LLP
_ Chartered Accountants
PaAL PN (FRN: 000560C/ C400334)

—

(Jai Shanker Prasad Bansal)
Partner

Membership No. 070980

UDIN: 25070980BMOMTW 1985

Date: 12t May 2025
Place: Jaipur



Svatanira Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2025

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)

Note no. As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Assets

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3 5,938.17 7,093.34
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 4 2,625.34 2,478.92
Loans 5 224,282 .46 201,239.11
Other financial assets 6 383.44 206.82
Total financial assets 233,229.41 211,018.19
Non<financial assets

Current tax assets (net) i 147.90 93.56
Deferred tax assets (net) 8 1,000.46 758.21
Investment property 9 2.51 2.51
Property, plant and equipment 10 411.59 304.81
Intangible assets under development 10 2.58 -
Capital work in progress 10 1.77 -
Other Intangible assets 10 13.34 10.14
Right of use asset 11 413.47 428.68
Other non-financial assets 12 344.34 129.03
Total non-financial assets 2,337.96 1,726.94
Total assets 235,567.37 212,745.13
Liabilities and equity

Liabilities

Financial liabilities

Payables

Trade payables

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 13 - -

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 13 41.13 14.75
small enterprises

Other payables

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 14 - -

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 14 343.79 253.79
small enterprises

Debt securities 15 - 5,801.55
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 16 192,419.53 166,139.45
Suboerdinated Liabilities 17 3,000.00 3,000.00
Other financial liabilities 18 634,52 841.97
Total financial liabilities 196,438.97 176,051.51
Non-financial liabilities

Provisions 19 248.65 184.95
Other non-financial liabilities 20 276.41 23472
Total non-financial liabilities 523.06 419.67
Total liabilities 196,962,03 176,471.18
Equity

Equity share capital 21 7,472.70 7,472.70
Other equity 22 31,132.64 28,801.25
Total equity 38,605.34 36,273.95
Total liabilities and equity 235,567.37 212,745.13
Summary of Material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For S. Bhandari & Co. LLP For and on -4half of thy Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Ltd.

Firp's Registration No.; 000560C/C400334 -

W - ] AL o e

Jai Shanker Prasad Bﬁsal Jay-Fsh Shah Anil Chirania

Partner “——LRisclor Director

Membership No: 70980 e DIN: 01082719

Place: Jaipur \

Date: j2./0 5/2026

N
ot

Nitesh Amarnani

HEf Edetutive Officer Chief Financial Officer

e o
Tasheem Rangwala
Company Secratary
Membership No: A34613
Place: Mumbai

Date: |‘L(05/2025




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs')

Note no. Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Revenue from operations

Interest income 23 27,961.58 23,819.83
Fees and commission income 24 104.82 93.39
Net gain on fair value changes 25 249.43 170.00
Total revenue from operations 28,315.83 24,083.22
Other income 26 183.72 280.03
Total income 28,499.55 24,363.25
Expenses

Finance costs 27 16,321.20 14,390.09
Impairment on financial instruments 28 1,354.91 795.64
Employee benefits expense 29 5,855.53 4,674.34
Depreciation and amaortisation 30 391.59 302.06
Other expenses 31 1,669.28 1,377.04
Total expenses 25,592.51 B 21,539.17
Profit before tax 2,907.04 2,824.08
Tax expense:

- Current tax 32 824.23 739.89
- Deferred tax expense 33 (243.84) (161.28)
- Earlier year tax adjustments 32 - (34.67)

~ 580.39 543.94

Profit after tax 2,326.65 2,280.14
Other comprehensive income

(i) hems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (cost) 6.33 (10.05)
(if) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to (1.59) 253
profit or loss

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax 4,74 (7.52)
Total comprehensive income 2,331.39 2,272.62
Earnings per share (Nominal Value - Rs. 10) 34

Basic earnings per share (Rs.) 3.1 3.42
Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) 3.1 3.42
Summary of Material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For S. Bhandari & Co. LLP behalf of.the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Micro Housing Finance Corporation Ltd.
Firm's Registration No.: 000560C/C400334

\<00RS

- L\A—-ﬁ-—‘
Jai Shanker Prasad Bansal Anil Chirania

Partner Director

Membership No: 70980 DIN: 01082719

Place: Jaipur V\“

Date: \2/05/207/5 o

Nitesh Amarnani
Chief Financial Officer

Tasneem Rangwala
Company Secretary
Membership No: A34613
Place: Mumbai

Date: 12 /p 5/2,0?,5




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025

Equity share capital

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs')

No of shares

Amount

Balance as at 1 April 2023

Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reparting year

Issued during the year
Conversion during the year
Balance at 31 March 2024

Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting year

Issued during the year
Conversion during the year
Balance at 31 March 2025

Other equity

63,798,081

10,928,962

6,379.81

1,092.90

74,727,043

7472711

74,727,043

747271

{Amount in Rs. 'Lacs")

Reserves and Surplus

Securities premium

Statutory Impairment Retained earnings
reserves reserve

Total

Balance as at 1 April 2023

Profit for the year

Addition during the year

Share issue expenses

Income tax pertaining to Share issue expense
Other comprehensive income for the year
(remeasurement of the defined benefit plans)
Transfer from / to retained earnings

Balance as at 31 March 2024

Profit for the year

Addition during the year

Share issue expenses

Income tax pertaining to Share issue expense
Other comprehensive income for the year
(remeasurement of the defined benefit plans)
Transfer from / to retained earnings

Balance as at 31 March 2025

15,085,58
3,907.10

(23.75)
5.98

2,162.11 690.28 4,701.32
- - 2,280.14

- - (7.52)

626.37 - (626.37)

22,639.30
2,280.14
3,907.10

{23.75)
5.98
(7.52)

10.00]

18,974.91

28,801.25

2,788.48 690.28 6,347.57
. 2,326.65

- - 4.74

715.12 (715.12)

2,326.65

474

18,974.91

3,503.60 690.28 7,963.84

31,132.64

Summary of Material accounting policies - refer note 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For S. Bhandari & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 000560C/C400334

Jai Shanker Prasad Bbél
Partner
Membership No: 70980

Place: Jaipur

Date: |7 /05/ 202.5

For and on{behalf of the
Svatantra

Jagesh Shah

%s";fe/),
Tas\nee angwala

Company Secretary
Membership No: A34613
Place: Mumbai

Date: 12/05/ 2025

Board of Directors of
inance Corporation Ltd.
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Anil Chirania
Director
DIN: 01082719

Nitesh Amarnani

Chief Financial Officer



Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2025

Profit before tax

Cash flow from operating activities

Adjusted for:

Finance costs on lease liabilities

Transaction costs on borrowings

Gain on sale of mutual fund units held as current investments
Depreciation and amortisation

Gain on termination/modification of lease

Interest on fixed deposits and Inter corporate deposits
Transaction costs on Loans

Impairment/writeoff of financial instruments
Unwinding interest income

Operating profit before working capital changes

Changes in working capital

- {Increase) / decrease in loans

- (Increase) / decrease in other financial assets

- (Increase) / decrease in other non financial assets
- Increase / (decrease) in trade payables

- Increase / {decrease) in other financial liabilities

- Increase / (decrease) in other non financial liabilities
- Increase / (decrease) in provisions

Cash generated from operating activities
Income tax paid (net)

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of praperty, plant and equipment, capital work in progress including intangibles assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangibles assets

Purchase of mutual funds

Proceeds of sale of mutual funds

Interest received on bank deposits and Inter corporate loans

Maturity /{investments) of /in fixed deposits

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of equity shares
Share issue expenses

Proceeds from long term borrowings
Repayment of long term borrowings
Repayment of lease liabilities

interest paid on lease liabilities

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand

Balances with banks

- With banks in current accounts

Deposits with maturity of less than 3 months
Cash and cash equivalents

{Amount in Rs. 'Lacs')

Year ended
31 March 2025

2,907.04

39.52

18.50
(249.43)

39159

(267.94)
106.02
1,000.92
(4.96)
3,941.26

(24,150.29)
(228.22)
(215.31)

116.38
(152.23)

41.69

68.03

(20,578.69)
(878.58)

(21,457.27)

(336.19)

(170,400.00)
170,649.43
267.94

(146.42)
34.76

77.850.00
(57,389.97)
(153.17)
(39.52)
20,267.34

(1.155.17)
7,093.34
5,938.17

9.90
3,422.60

2,505.67
5,938.17

Year ended
31 March 2024

2,824.08

39.81
(19.54)
(170.00)
294.79
(2.25)
(624.45)
218.17
502.68
13.77)
3,059.52

(50,495.85)
10.88
4.63
91.73
38.62
44.88
(75.49)
(47,321.08)
(798.78)
(48,119.86)

(357.65)
1.77
(182,740.00)
182,910.00
799.67
2,597.19
3,210.98

5,000.00
(23.75)
77,800.00
(48,022.77)
(110.56)
(39.81)
34,603.11

(10,305.77)
17,399.12
7,093.35

12.53
3,078.45

4,002.36
7,093.34



Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2025
Cash Flow Statement (Contd..}

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Opening balance (Borrowings + debt securities) 175,386.41 145,448.31

Proceeds from long-term borrowings (including debentures) 77,850.00 77,800.00

Repayment /( addition ) in lease liabilities (net) (15.70) 220.22

Finance costs on lease liabilities (39.52) (39.81)
Repayments of long-term borrowings (57,389.97) (48,022.77)
Transaction costs on borrowings 18,50 (19.54)
Closing balance (Borrowings+ debt securities) 195,809.72 175,386.41

Summary of Material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For S. Bhandari & Co. LLP For and on b Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Svatantra Mjcro Housing Finance Corporation Ltd.
Firm's Registration No.: 000560C/C400334

hpuenl~ N TS

Jai Shanker Prasad Bansal Jaygsh Shah Anil Chirania
Partner ,_______,Djr “tor Director
Membership No: 70980 DIN: 02562108 DIN: 01082719
Place: Jaipur /o

Date: 12 /65/2025 , NO(M“‘

Nitesh Amarnani
xetutife Officer Chief Financial Officer

el

-

Company Secretary
Membership No: A34613

Place: Mumbai
Date: |12/05/ 2025




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Corporate Information

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited ("SMHFC” or "the Company") was incorporated on 16 May 2008 with the objective to
provide housing finance for financially excluded families, particularly lower income informal sector households. The Company was registered
with National Housing Bank ("NHB") as housing finance company. However, vide certifcate of regstration dated 12 Februry 2020, the Company
also registered with the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI") as a housing finance company. The Company is domiciled in India and its registered
office is situated at Office no. 1,2,3,4, Ground Floor, Pushpak Co-operative Housing Society Ltd., Malaviya Road, Vile Parle (East), Mumbai -
400 057, Maharashtra, India. The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Svatantra Holdings Private Limited

1 Basis of preparation of financial statements
These financial statements (“the Financial Statements") have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) as
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA') under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, (as amended from time to time) and other relevant provisions of the Act. Any application
guidance/clarifications/ directions issued by Reserve bank of India and National Housing Bank or cther regulators are implemented as and
when they are issued/ applicable. The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies for all the periods presented in this financial
statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and accrual basis, except for the following assets and liabilities
and on the basis of accounting principles of a going concern in accordance with generally accepted accounting principle (GAAP):

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value

ii) Defined benefit plans, and related -plan assets measured at fair value using actuarial valuation

The financial statements have been presented in accordance with Schedule Ill-Division Ill General Instructions for Preparation of financial
statements of a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) that is required to comply with Ind AS.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 were authorised and approved for issue by the Board of Directors on May 12,
2025

2 Material accounting policies

a. Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘INR' or 'Rs.’) which is also the Company's functional currency. All amounts are
rounded-off to the nearest lacs, unless otherwise indicated.

b. Measurement of fair values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whaole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative
instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in
discontinued operations.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured
or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting palicies. For this analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the
change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
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¢. Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured.

Interest Income

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instruments or, when appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a
constant rate of return over the expected life of the loan.

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk. The adjustment is booked as a
positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income. The
adjustment is subsequently amortised through interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Penal Charges and Penal Interest
Penal Charges and Penal Interest are accured and due on receipt basis.

Net gain on Fair value changes:

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as fair value through the profit or loss held by Company on the balance
sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain / loss. In cases there is a net gain in the aggregate, the same is recognised in "Net gains on fair
value changes" under revenue from operations and if there is a net loss the same is disclosed under "Expenses" in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Similarty, any realised gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FVTL and debt instruments measured at Fair value through
Other Comprehensive Income ("FVQOCI") is recognised in net gain\loss on fair value changes.

However, net gain / loss on derecognition of financial instruments classified as amartised is presented separately under the respective head in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Fees and commission
Service fees and facilitation charges are recognised on satisfactorly completion of service delivery.

d. Financial instruments
Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial
instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial
lizbilities is described below.

Non-derivative financial assets
Subsequent measurement

i. Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and Contractual terms of the
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequenily measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii. Investments in equity instruments

Investments in equity instruments which are held for trading are classified at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). For all other equity
instruments, the Company makes an irrevocable choice upon initial recognition, on an instrument by instrument basis, to classify the same
either at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). Amounts presented in other
comprehensive income are not subsequently transferred to Statment of Profit and Loss. However, the Company transfers the cumulative gain
or loss within equity.

Dividends on such investments are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment.




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

iii. Investments in mutual funds
Investments in mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

De-recognition of financial assets

Financial assets (or where applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) are derecognised (i.e. removed
from the Company's balance sheet) when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or when the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. Further, if the Company has not retained control, it shall also de-
recognise the financial asset and recognise separately as assets or liabilities any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

e. Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date and exchange gain or loss arising on settlement
and restatement are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

f. Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalisation criteria
are met and directly atiributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are
deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Campany and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair
and maintenance costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation on
property, plant and equipment is provided on the written down method over the useful life of the assets. as prescribed under Part 'C’ of
Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

Asset Class Useful life
Office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 3 years
Furniture and fixture 10 years

Depreciation is calculated on pro rata basis from the date on which the asset is ready for use or till the date the asset is sold or disposed. The
residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year. PPE costing up to Rs. 5,000
individually are depreciated fully in the year in which they are purchased.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, when the asset is
de-recognised.

Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress are carried at cost, comprising direct cost and related incidental expenses acquire property, plant and equipment.
Assets which are not ready to intended use are also shown under capital work-in-progress.

Intangible assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price including any import duties and other taxes (other
than those subsequently recoverable from taxation authorities), borrowing cost if capitalisation criteria are met and directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

Computer software - 3 years
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Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised over a their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life (amortisation period) of the intangible assets is
arrived basis the expected pattern of consumption of economic benefits and is reviewed at the end of each financial year and the amortisation
period is revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any. The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Computer Software - 3 years

d. Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax expenses and net change in the deferred tax assets or liabilities during the year. Current and
deferred taxes are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to item that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current taxes

Provision for current tax is recognized based on the estimated tax liability computed after taking credit for allowances and exemptions in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Advance taxes and provision for current income tax are presented in the balance sheet after
offsetting the advance tax paid and income tax provision arising in the same jurisdiction and where the relevant tax paying units intends to
settle the asset and liability on a net basis.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised on unused tax loss, unused tax credits and
deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. This
is assessed based on the Company's forecast of future operating resuits, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and
specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of
deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously. Deferred tax
relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity).

h. Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits:

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as a related service provided. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short term cash bonus or profit sharing plans if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation ta pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated refiably.

Contribution to provident fund and other funds :

In accordance with Indian Law, eligible employees receive benefits from Provident Fund , Employee State Insurance Contribution (ESIC) and
Labour welfare fund which is defined contribution plan. In case of Provident fund, both the employee and employer make monthly contributions
to the plan, which is administrated by the Government authorities, each equal to the specific percentage of employee's basic salary. The
Company has no further obligation under the plan beyond its monthly contributions. Obligation for contributions to the plan is recognised as an
employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred.

Gratuity:

Gratuity is a post employment benefit and is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of
gratuity is the present value of the defined benefit / obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets, together with
adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefits / obligations are calculated at the balance
sheet date by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising on the measurement of defined benefit obligation is charged/ credited to other comprehensive income

Compensated Absences:

The employees of the Company are entitled to leave as per the leave policy of the Company. The liabilities towards compensated absences to
employees are accrued on the basis of valuations, as at the Balance Sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary using Projected Unit
Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions and are
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

i. Borrowing costs:
Borrowing cost of financial liabilities is recognised using the Effective Intrest Rate (EIR) method
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j. Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's net selling price and its value in use. If
such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. If at the reporting date, there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the
recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount.

k. Impairment of financial assets

Loan assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on
the financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is calculated to provide
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-
month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from defauit events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

The measurement of ECL is calculated using three main components: (i) probability of default (PD) (i) loss given default (LGD) and (iii) the
exposure at default (EAD). The 12 month ECL is calculated by multiplying the 12 month PD, LGD and the EAD. The 12 month and lifetime PDs
represent the PD occurring over the next 12 months and the remaining maturity of the instrument respectively. The EAD represents the
expected balance at default, taking into account the repayment of principal and interest from the balance sheet date to the default event
together with any expected drawdowns of committed facilities. The LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default,
taking into account, among other attributes, the mitigating effect of collateral vaiue at the time it is expected to be realised and the time value of
money.

The Company applies a three-stage approach to measure ECL on financial assets accounted for at amortised cost and FVTOCI. Assets
migrate through the following three stages based on the change in credit quality since initial recognition.

i) Stage 1: 12-months ECL - For exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are
not credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default events occurring within the next 12
months is recognised. Exposures with days past due (DPD) less than or equal to 29 days are classified as stage 1. The Company has
identified zero bucket and bucket with DPD less than or equal to 29 days as two separate buckets.

i) Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired - For credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but that are not credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised. Exposures with DPD equal to 30 days but less than or equal to 89
days are classified as stage 2. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk for
financial asset since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected life between the reporting date and the date
of initial recognition. The Company has identified cases with DPD equal to or more than 30 days and less than or equal to 59 days and cases
with DPD equal to or more than 60 days and less than or equal to 89 days as two separate buckets.

iii) Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit impaired - Financial asset is assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred. For financial asset that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is
recognised on principal outstanding as at pericd end. Exposures with DPD equal to or more than 90 days are classified as stage 3,

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets. For debt
securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in OCI and carrying amount of the financial asset is not reduced in the balance sheet.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit
impaired on purchase/ origination.

It has been the Company's policy to regularly review its madels in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary. Refer note
38(C) for detailed note.

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires measurement of loss allowance at
an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of trade receivables.

Wirite-offs

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Any subsequent
recoveries are credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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I. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand (including imprest), demand deposits and short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. The Company has netted off
the balance of bank overdraft with cash and cash equivalents for Statement of Cash Flows.

m. Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets:

Provisions are recognised only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the amount of
obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:

Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or

Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income is virtually certain, related asset is disclosed.

n. Reimbursement of processing fee and other charges

As per the guidelines of new government schemes under Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY), no processing fee is allowed to be charged to
the eligible customers. However, the Company is entitled to get a reimbursement from the customers for the expenses incurred in connection
with origination of the loans. Such reimbursement receivable forms part of “Non-housing loans”, included under Loans and advances in the
Balance Sheet.

The expenses presented in the Staternent of Profit and Loss such as Salaries and wages, Insurance, Franking charges, etc. are stated net of
such recoveries from customers.

o. Eamings per share

The basic earnings per equily share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period. The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share
comprises the weighted average number of shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of
equity shares, which may be issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential shares, unless the resuits would be anti dilutive.

p. Leases

As a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.

i. Right of use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer note 2 (j) of accounting policy for impairment of non-financial assets.

ii. Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

The Company's lease liabilities are included in other financial liabilities

iii. Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its shori-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-
value assets recognition exemption to leases of laptops, lease-lines and office furniture and equipment that are considered to be low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term

As a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

g. Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS 116 ~ Leases, relating to sale and
leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2024. The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its
evaluation has determined that it does not have any significant impact in its financial statements.
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Cash and cash equivalents

‘Cash on hand
Balances with banks in current accounts®
Deposits with maturity of less than 3 months**

* Includes amounts received towards NHB subsidy pending transfer to customers

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Deposits with maturity of 12 months and more*

*Bank deposit held as securities
against borrowings
against bank guarantee

Loans

At amortised cost

(i) Term loans

(a) Housing loans

(b) Non Housing loans

(c) Loan to employees

Total (i) - Gross loans

Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total (i) - Net

(i) Secured/unsecured

(a) Secured by tangible assets
(b) Unsecured

Total {ii) - Gross

Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total (ii} - Net

(iii) Loans in India

{a) Public sector

(b) Others

Total (iii) - Gross

Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total (jii) - Net

{iv) Loans outside India
(a) Loan outside India
Total {iv)

|Amount in Rs, 'Lacs')

As at
31 March 2025
9.90
3,422.60
2,505.67
5,938.17

246

As at
31 March 2024
12.53
3,078.45
4,002.36_
7,093.34
2.46

(Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs’)

As at
31 March 2025
2,625.34
2,625.34

2,416.87
2,416.87

As at
31 March 2024
2,478.92
2,478.92

180.73
2,289.19
247892

!Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

187,248.01 171,698.36
39,565.35 31,085.77
68.95 53.91
226,882.31 202,838.04
(2,599.85) (1,598.93)
224,282.46 201,239.11
226,813.36 202,784.13
68.95 53.91
226,882.31 202,838.04
(2,599.85) (1,598.93)
224,282 46 201,239.11
226,862.31 202,838.04
226,882.31 202,838.04
(2,599.85) (1,598.93)
224,282.46 201,239.11

Loans or advances in the nature of loans are granted to the promoters, directors,KMP's, and the related parties, either severally or jointly with any other persons.

As at 31 March

% to the total

As at 31 March 2024

% to the total

2025 Ioans and loans and
Particul advances in the advances in the
articulars nature of loans nature of loans
|
B |
Promotors | NiL NIL NIL NIL
Directors | NIL NIL NIL NIL
KMP's 1 NIL NIL NIL NIL
Related parties | NIL NIL NIL NiL |
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6 Other financial assets

At amortised cost

Security deposits

Staff advances(net)

Receivable from government authority*
Others receivables

* Represents receivable from municipal authority on account of loans defaulted by the customers under BSUP scheme.

7 Current tax assets (net)

Advance tax*

“net of provision for tax as at 31 March 2025: Rs.820.97 Lacs (As at 31 March 2024, Rs.739.89 Lacs)

8 Deferred Tax Assets/ Liabilities (net)

Deferred Tax assets
Provision for impairment of assets
Provision for employee benefits

Temporary difference on PPE depreciation/amortisation

Uneamned processing fee
Share issue expenses
Transaction cost on loans
Lease liabilities
Total deferred Tax assets
Deferred Tax liabilities
Amortisation of borrowing costs
_Modification (restructuring) aain on financial as'segg
Total deferred Tax liabilities
Net deferred Tax assets/(liabilities)

[Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)

As at
31 March 2025

245.54
33.97
41.08
62,85

383.44

As at
31 March 2024

87.07
13.60
42,40
63.75
206.82

{Amount in Rs, ‘Lacs’)

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

93.56
93.56

(Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs’)

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

608.24 362.47
60.80 45.01
61.94 39.00

1.49 7.42
472 7.39
378.06 406.29
(5.86) 421
1,109.39 871.79
(104.77) (109.42)
(4.16) (4.16)
(108.93) (113.38)
1,000.46 758.21
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Investment property
(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs')

Particulars Freehold land Total

Gross block

As at 1 April 2023 2.51 2.51
Additions - -
Deletions - -
As at 31 March 2024 2.51 2.51
Additions - -
Deletions - -
“As at 31 March 2025 ' 251 2.51

Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2023 - -
Charge for the year - -
Deletions - -
As at 31 March 2024 - -
Charge for the year - .
Deletions - -
As at 31 March 2025 - -

Net block
As at 31 March 2025 2.51 2.51
As at 31 March 2024 2.51 2.51
Notes:

The Company's investment property is a piece of land in India, currently for undetermined use. The Company has no
restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and no contractual obligations to either purchase,
construct or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements. The Company confirms
that the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company

(a) Fair value of investment property Amount in Rs. 'Lacs')
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025| 31 March 2024
Freehold land 1.89 1.49

The fair value of investment property has been determined by an independent valuer, who has adequate
professional experience as well as adequate expertise in the location and category of the investment property. The
value is determined based on the rate prescribed by government authorities for the property. Management believes
that the net recoverable value of the property would be higher than carrying amount and therefore, no impairment
has been made. The resultant fair value estimates for investment property is included in level 2,

There are no amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss account in relation to the above investment
property.




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

10 Property, plant and equipment

10

10

[Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs’)

"~ Particulars Office equipment Furniture and Computer and Leasehold Total
fixtures data processing | improvements
equipment

| Gross block (Cost)

| As at 1 April 2023 82.02 29.36 125.41 52.52 289.31
Additions 86.12 39.81 73.18 148.55 347.66

| Deletion (0.95)| (0.27)| (0.50}| - | 1.72)|
As at 31 March 2024 167.19 | 68.90 198.09 201.07 | 635.25

| Additions 109.21 46.90 97.53 | 65.53 31917
Deletion | - -

| As at 31 March 2025 276.40 | 115.80 295.62 | 266.60 | 954.42
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2023 42.51 17.08 74.54 43.52 177.65
Charge for the year 5142 10.73 57.01 33.62 152,79
Deletions - - - - -
As at 31 March 2024 93.93 27.81 | 131.55 7714 330.44
Charge for the year 69.20 19.07 63.77 60.36 212.40
Deletions - e - - -
As at 31 March 2025 163.13 46.88 | 195.32 | 137.50 | 542.84 |
Net block
As at 31 March 2024 73.26 41.09 66.54 123.93 304.81
As at 31 March 2025 113.27 68.92 100.30 129,10 411.59

Other Intangible assets

Particulars

Gross block

(Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs’)

Computer software

Cost at 1 April 2023 553
Additions 20.17
| Deletions 10.05)
| As at 31 March 2024 25.65
Additions 12.67
Deletions -
As at 31 March 2025 38.32
Accumulated amortisation
Cost at 1 April 2023 3.92
Charge for the year 11.59
Deletions -
As at 31 March 2024 156.51
Charge for the year 947 i
Deletions - -
As at 31 March 2025 24.98
Net block
As at 31 March 2024 10.14
As at 31 March 2025 13.34

* The Company has not revalued its' Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets during the year.

Intangible assets under development

‘Amount in Rs. 'Lacs')

Particulars Software
Cost at 1 April 2023 10.18
Additions 2.54
| Deletions 112.73)
| As at 31 March 2024 .
Additions 2.58
| Deletions - il -
| As at 31 March 2025 2.58
Net block
| As at 31 March 2024
As at 31 March 2025 2,58
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Intangible assets under development ageing schedule for the year ended 31 March 2025 is as follows:

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs')

Amount in Intangible asset under development for a period of

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

Projects in progress

2.58

2.58

Projects temporarily suspended

Intangible assets under development agei

ng schedule for the year ended 31 March 2024 is as follows:

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)

Amount in Intangible asset under development for a period of

Less than 1 year

1-2 ye;s

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

Projects in progress

Projects temporarily suspended

Capital work in progress

Particulars

As at 31 March 2024
Additions

- Deletions

_ As at 31 March 2025
Additions
Deletions

| As at 31 March 2025
Net block

| As at 31 March 2024

| As at 31 March 2025

_(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)
Leasehold
improvement

177

1.77

1.77

Capital work in progress ageing schedule for the year ended 31 March 2025 is as follows:

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs')

Amount in Intangible asset under development for a period of

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3

Total

Projects in progress

1.77

1.77

Projects temporarily suspended

| Lessthan1 year
|
T
|

Capital work in progress ageing schedule for the year ended 31 March 2024 is as follows:

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs'

Amount in Intangible asset under development for a period of

Less than 1 year

1.2 years

2-3 years

More than 3

Total

| Projects in progress

Projects temporarily suspended

Right of use Asset

Particulars

_|Amount in Rs. 'Lacs')

Office building

Gross amount as at 1 April 2023 548.55
Additions 312.33
Deletions - 119.11)
| As at 31 March 2024 841.77
| Additions 154.51
| Deletions -
| As at 31 March 2025 996.28
Accumulated amortisation
As at 1 April 2023 282.68
Charge for the year 137.68
| Deletions (7.27)
| As at 31 March 2024 413.09
| Charge for the year 169.72
' Deletions -
As at 31 March 2025 - 582.81
Net block
_As at 31 March 2024 428.68

As at 31 March 2025
* ROU is on tangible asset

I 413.47
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Other non-financial assets

Prepaid expenses
Other assets

Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises ( Refer note 44)

{Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
31876 80.31
2558 4872
344.34 129.03

|Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)
As at

As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

4113

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 14,75
14.75
Ageing of Trade Payables as per below schedule for balances outstanding as at 31 March 2025
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(il MSME |
(ii) Others 41,13 =— - - | 41.13
(ifi] Disputed dues — MSME {
(iviDisouted dues - Others
(v|Unbilled |
Ageing of Trade Payables as per below schedule for balances outstanding as at 31 March 2024
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment j
Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years | Total
(i) MSME |
lii) Others 14.75 - - | 14,75

(iii) Disputed dues — MSME

(iv)Disputed dues - Others

(viUnbilled

Other payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 44)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Debt securities

Secured
At amortised cost

{Amount in Rs. 'Lacs')
As at
31 March 2024

As at

343.79
343.79

253.79
25379

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)
As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2025

Redeemable non-convertible debentures - 5,301.54
Unsecured
At amortised cost
Redeemable non-convertible debentures - 500.01
- 5,801.55
Debt securities in India - 5,801.55
Debt securities outside India - -
- ~ 5,801.55
|Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’
Terms of debentures As at As at
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
9.45% secured rated, unlisted, 265,000 redeemable non convertible debentures of Rs. 1,000 at par on 18 November 2024* - 2,650.00
10.60% secured rated, unlisted, 266,000 redeemable non convertible debentures of Rs. 1,000 at par on 18 November 2024* - 2,660.00
8.51%. unsecured, rated. unlisted. fully paid up. taxable. 300 redeemable non-convertible debentures of Rs.1.000.000 at par on 22 - 500.01
September 2024
Total Debt securities - 5.810.01
Adjustments of unamortised processing fee based on EIR - (8.46)
Total adjusted Debt securities - 5,801.55

*The above non-convertible debentures ("NCD") were issued on private placement basis and secured by way of a first ranking exclusive and continuing charge over the standard
book debits / loan receivables of the Company. The payment of interest half yearly and Principal payable at maturity.




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

|[Amount in Rs.

Rate of interest Maturity As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Secured | E—

8.51% - 10.60% Within 1 year | - 5,310.00

8.51% - 10.60% |Within 1-5 years | - - -

Unsecured

8.51% - 10.60% | Within 1 year | - 500.01

8.51% - 10.60% | Within 1-5 years | - -
| Total Debt securities - 5,810.01 .
| Adjustments of unamortised processing fee based on EIR | | = (8.46):
| Total adjusted Debt securities | - 5,801.55

16  Borrowings (other than debt securities)
(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs')

As at As at
o 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
At amortised cost
Secured
Term loans
- from banks 163,314.37 132,904.73
- from National Housing Bank (NHB) 27,405.02 23,682.32
- from Financial Institution (FI) 11,700.14 9,462.40
Total 192,419.53 166,139.45
Borrowings in India 192,419.53 166.139.45
Borrowings outside India . -
192,419.53 166,139.45

Notes:
(i) Term loans are secured by first exclusive charge through hypothecation of book debts/ receivables of the Company.

(i) The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of debt securities and borrowings (other than debt securities) and interest thereon for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31
March 2024,

(iiiy The repayment of the borrowing is done in monthly, quarterly, half - yearly and annual installment as per the sanctioned terms,

{Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’
Rate of interest | Category Maturity As at | As at
- B ' | |__31March2025 | 31 March 2024

7%-9% Banks Within 1 year 468.73 322.84
9%-10% Banks 1,971.39 | 3,244.21 |
10%-11% Banks 976.31 745.74
12%-13% Banks - -
9%-10% Fi 63.74 -
| 2%-10%, NHB | 18.00 274.95
7%-9% Banks 64,668.22 40,436.77
Within 1-5 years
9%-10% Banks 42,244.06 41,182.16
10%-11% Banks 11,346.34 9,258.91
11%-12% Banks 634.06 4,029.62
| 12%-13% Banks -
7%-11% FI 8,150.89 4,912.85
| 2%-10% NHB 6,190.10 3,281.59
8%-9% Banks 16,372.58 7,500.00
More than 5 years
9%-10% Banks 15,001.34 26,641.66
7%-11% Fl 3,517.86 4,589.29
| 2%-10% NHB | | 21,212.17 | -
Total borrowings {excluding loans repayable on demand) 192,835.80 166,565.76
Adjustments of unamortised processing fee based on EIR | (416.27) (426.31)
Total adjusted borrowings (excluding loans repayable on demand) 1 192,419.53 166,139.45

17 Subordinated Liabilities
(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Unsecured
At amortised cost
Redeemable non-convertible debentures 3,000.00 3,000.00
3,000.00 3,000.00
Debt securities in India 3,000.00 3,000.00
Debt securities outside India - -
3,000.00 3,000.00
Rate of interest Maturity As at As at
S R | 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
9,50% subordinated, unsecured, rated, unlisted, fully paid up, taxable, 200 redeemable non-convertible Within 1-5 years 2,000.00 2,000.00
debentures of Rs.1,000,000 at par on 05 January 2028
9.50% subordinated, unsecured, rated, unlisted, fully paid up, taxable, 1000 redeemable non-converibie Within 1-5 years 1,000.00 1,000.00
debentures of Rs.1,000,00 at par on 15 June 2028,




18

20

21

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Other financial liabilities

As at As at
31 March 2025 _ 31 March 2024
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 223.05 181.41
Interest accrued but not due on debt securities - 195.04
Interest accrued but not due on subordinate liabilities 17.01 16.36
Subsidy received from NHB pending transfer to customer * 2.46 2.46
Lease liabilities 390.19 445.41
Employee benefits payable 1.81 1.29
634.52 841.97
* Pertain to credit linked subsidy and interest subvention scheme subsidy received from NHB, pending credit in respective applicant account.
Provisions
(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’]
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
"Unfunded

Provision for employee benefits

-Provision for gratuity (also refer note 39) 95.38 94.30

-Provision for leave encashment. 146.21 84.53

-Provision on Loan commitment 5.06 6.12
246.65 184.95

Other non-financial liabilities

{Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Statutory dues 65.86 74.46
Unspent CSR (also refer note 45) 15.26 14.92
Advances from customers 185.28 145.34
276.41 234.72

Share capital
Details of authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

As at 31 March 2025

(Amount in Rs. "Lacs’)
As at 31 March 2024

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs 10 each 94,000,000 9,400.00 94,000,000 9,400.00
Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 100 each 3,100,000 3,100.00 3,100,000 3,100.00

12,500.00 12,500.00
Issued,Subscribed and paid up
Equity shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid up 74,727,043 747270 74,727,043 7.472.70
5% Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 100 each, fully - - - -
paid up

T 74,727,083 747270 74,727,043 747270

Equity Shares

As at 31 March 2025

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)
As at 31 March 2024

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 74,727,043 7472.70 63,798,081 6,379.81
Issued during the year - - 10,928,962 1,082.90
Converted during the year et - . =
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 74,727,043 7.472.70 74,727,043 7.472.71

i. Shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares in the Company

Equity shares

Svatantra Holdings Private Limited

ii, Right, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

As at 31 March 2025

No. of shares

74,727,037

% of holding

100%

As at 31 March 2024

No. of shares

% of holding

100%

The Company has only one class of equily shares having a face value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitied to one vote per share. All shares rank pari
passu on repayment of capital in the event of liquidation. in the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of the equity shares will be entitied to receive any of the remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all the preferential amounts. However, no such preferential amounts exists currently. The distribution will be in proportion to the number
of equity shares held by the shareholders. The dividend proposed, if any, by the board of directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing general meseting.
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iii. Shares issued for consideration other than cash
The Company has not issued / allotted any shares pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash, nor issued any bonus shares nor there has been any buy back

of shares during five years immediately preceding 31 March 2025.

vi. Shareholding of Promoters for each class

Disclosure of shareholding of pr

s as at 31 March 2025 is as f¢_>|lows

Promotor Name | As at 31 March 2025 | As at 31 March 2024 % Change during
No. of Shares | %of total shares No. of Shares %of total shares the year
1) Promotors Company-Svatantra Holdings Private Limited 74,727,037 100% 74,727,037 100% 0.00%|
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2024 is as follows
Promotor Name As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 % Change during
No. of Shares | %of total shares No. of Shares %of total shares the year*
1) Promotors Company-Svatantra Holdings Private Limited 74,727,037 T100% 63.798,081 100% 17.13%
L 1 ==
* Represent change in percentage based on number of shares
22 Other equity (Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)
Notes As at As at
S 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Securities premium 22.2 18,974.91 18,974.91
Statutory reserve under section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 22.3 3,503.61 2,788.49
Impairment reserves 224 690.28 690.28
Retained earnings 225 7.963.84 6.347.57
31,132.64 28,801.25
—_— (Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)
221 Patticulars As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Securities premium

Opening balance 18,974.91 15,085.58
Add: Premium received on issue or conversion of shares - 3,907.10
Less: Share issue expenses (net of taxes) - 117.77)
Closing balance 18,974.91 18,974.91
Statutory reserves under section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

Opening balance 2,788.49 2,162.11
Add: Current year transfer 715.12 626.38
Closing balance 3,503.61 2,788.49
Impairment reserves

Opening balance 690.28 690.28
Add: Current year transfer - -
Closing balance 690.28 690.28
Retained eamings

Opening balance 6,347.57 4,701.34
Add: Transferred from Statement of profit and loss 2,326.65 2,280.13
Less: Transfer to statutory reserves (715.12) (626.38)
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earmings

Add: Other comprehensive (loss)income for the vear (net of tax) 4,74 (7.52)
Closing balance 7,963.84 6,347.57

22.2 Securities premium
Securities premium is credited when shares are issued at premium. It can be used to issue bonus shares, to provide for premium on redemption of shares or debentures, write-off
equity related expenses like underwriting costs etc.

22.3 Statutory reserves under section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
As per Section 29C of National Housing Bank Act (NHB), 1987, the Company is required to transfer at least 20% of its net profits every year to a reserve before any dividend is
declared. For this purpose, any Special Reserves created by the Company under Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is considered to be an eligible transfer.Thus,
during the year ended 31 March 2024 and year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has transferred to Statutory Reserves, an amount arrived in accordance with Section 29C of
the NHB Act, 1887.

224 Impairment Reserves as per RBI notification

As per DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20, where impairment allowance under Ind AS 108 is lower than the provisioning required under IRACP (including standard
asset provisioning), NBFCs/ARCs shall appropriate the difference from their net profit or loss after tax to a separate ‘lmpairment Reserves’. The balance in the 'Impairment
Reserves’ shall not be reckoned for regulatory capital. Further, no withdrawals shall be permitted from this reserves without prior permission from the Department of Supervision,

RBI.

22.5 Retained earnings
Retained eamings pertain to the accumulated earnings / losses made by the Company over the years.
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Interest income

On financial assets measured at amortised cost
Interest on loans

Interest income on deposits with banks

Interest income on corporate deposit

Other interest income

Fees and commission income

Service and facilitation fees

Net gain on fair value changes

Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
- Investments in mutual funds

Total net gain on fair value changes
Fair Value changes:

-Realised

Total net gain on fair value changes

Other income

Income from advertisment
Unwinding interest income
Gain/(Loss) on termination of lease
Miscellaneous income

Finance costs

On financial liabilities measured at amortised costs
Interest on borrowings (other than debt securities)
Interest on debt securities

Interest on subordinate liabilities

Interest on lease liabilities

Bank charges and others

Impairment on financial instruments

On financial instrument measured at amortised cost
Loans

Impairment loss allowance

Bad debt written off

Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages

Gratuity and leave expenses (refer note 39)
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

|Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)

Year ended
31 March 2025

27,476.59
267.94

217.05

27,961.58

Year ended
31 March 2024

22,600.31
624 .45
42012
174.95

23,819.83

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)

Year ended
31 March 2025

104.82
104.82

Year ended
31 March 2024

93.39
93.39

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)

Year ended
31 March 2025

249.43
249.43

24943
249.43

Year ended
31 March 2024

170.00
170.00

170.00
170.00

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’] _

Year ended
31 March 2025
165.00
4.96

13.76
183.72

Year ended
31 March 2024

264.32
3.77
2.25
9.69

280.03

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs')

Year ended
31 March 2025

15,572.66
353.25
285.00

39.52
70.77
16,321.20

Year ended
31 March 2024

13,329.26
665.70
285.40

39.81
6992
14,390.09

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)

Year ended
31 March 2025

1,045.16
309.75
1,354.91

Year ended
31 March 2024

628.21
167.43
795.64

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)

Year ended
31 March 2025

5,218.85
198.06
314.34
124.28

5,855.53

Year ended
31 March 2024

4,176.56
143.68
250.94
103.16

467434
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Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation of plant, property and equipment
Depreciation of Right of use assets

Amortisation of Intangible asset

Other expenses

Electricity expenses

Rent

Repairs and maintenance

- Others

Insurance

Rates and taxes

Payments to auditors (Refer Note below)
Computer and software expenses
Communication expenses

Professional, legal and consultancy fees
Printing and stationery

Travelling, conveyance and boarding expenses
Adverlising and marketing expenses
Corporate social responsibility (Refer Note 45)
Brokerage and commission

Miscellaneous expenses

Note: Payments to auditors
Audit fees
Certification work

Tax expense

Current tax expense
Current tax for the year

Deferred taxes

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
Change in deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax expense

Earlier year tax adjustment
Earlier year tax adjustments

Total income tax expense

Tax reconciliation

Profit before income tax expense

Statutory income tax rate

Tax at statutory income tax rate

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible / not taxable in calculating taxable income

Tax impact on expenses which is non deductible

Tax impact on deduction under Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
Earlier year tax adjustments

Others

Income tax expense

(Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs’)

Year ended
31 March 2025
212.40
169.72
9.47
391.59

Year ended
31 March 2024
152.79
137.68
11.59
302.06

{Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)

Year ended
31 March 2025

21.84
37.08

2474
19.85
0.16
2423
174.41
75.66
230.12
104.86
583.82
19.22
50.20
917
203.92
1,669.28

19.93
4,30
24,23

Year ended
31 March 2024

13.78
23.86

14.28
19.70
0.44
18.29
137.10
62.38
252.45
100.37
478.99
1275
34.45
9.00
199.20
1.377.04

13.39
4.90
18.29

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)

Year ended
31 March 2025

824.23
824.23

(243.84)

(243.34)

580.39

Year ended
31 March 2024

739.89
739.89

(161.27)
(161.27)

(34.67)
{34.67)

543.95

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)

Year ended
31 March 2025
2,907.04

25.17%
731.64

12.83
(179.98)

16.10
580.39

Year ended
31 March 2024

2,824.08
25.17%
710.76

8.67
(157.65)

(34.67)
16.84
543.95
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33 Deferred tax movement related to the following:

1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs")

Particulars As at 31 RS‘::;gr:::do'fn Re.cognised R-ecogn.ized As at 31 March
March 2024 Profit and Loss in OCI in equity 2025
Deferred tax asset on account of:
Provision for impairment of assets 362.47 24577 - - 608.24
Provision for employee benefits 45.01 17.38 (1.59) - 60.80
Share issue expenses 7.39 (2.67) - - 4.72
Temporary difference on depreciation on property plant and 38.99 22.94 - - 61.93
equipment
Unearned processing fee 7.42 (5.93) - - 1.49
Transaction costs on Loans 406.28 (28.23) - - 378.07
Lease liabilities 4.21 (10.07) - - (5.86)
Total 871.78 239.19 (1.59) - 1,109.39
Deferred tax liability on account of:
Transaction costs on borrowings 109.42 (4.66) - - 104,76
Modification (restructuring) gain on financial assets 4.16 0.00 - - 4.16
Remeasurement of gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans - - - -
Total 113.58 (4.66) - - 108.92
Deferred tax assets (net) 758.20 243.85 (1.59) - 1,000.46
1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024
(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs")
Recognised in . .
Particulars M::::tz?l‘ln Stategment of Re; ogrcl:lls . R:]c:g:iltz;d S atz?)‘lzl\llarch
Profit and Loss
Deferred tax asset on account of:
Provision for impairment of assets 258.23 104.24 - - 362.47
Provision for employee benefits 61.58 (19.10) 2.53 - 45.01
Share issue expenses 4.66 (3.25) - 5.98 7.39
Temporary difference on depreciation on property 21.77 17.22 - - 38.99
plant and equipment
Unearned processing fee - 7.42 - - 7.42
Transaction costs on Loans 351.38 54.91 - - 406.29
Lease liabilities - 4.21 - - 4.21
Total 697.62 165.66 2.53 598 871.78
Deferred tax liability on account of:
Transaction costs on borrowings 104.51 4.91 - - 109.42
Modification (restructuring) gain on financial assets 4.16 - - 4.16
Unearned processing fee 0.31 (0.31) - - (0.00)
Lease liabilities 0.22 (0.22) - - (0.00)
Remeasurement of gains/ (losses) on defined benefit - - - - -
plans
Total 109.20 438 - - 113.58
588.42 161.28 2.53 5.98 758.20

Deferred tax assets (net)
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Earnings per share
(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)
‘Year ended Year ended
Particular 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Net profit attributable to equity holders 2.326.65 2.280.14
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for basic eamings per share 74,727,043 66,612,663
Eaming per share (Basic and Diluted) in Rs. 31 3.;02
10

Nominal value per share (%)

Related party disclosures.

Related party disclosures as required under Indian Accounting standard (Ind AS) - 24, * Related Party Disclosure” are given beiow.

List of related parties
[Nature of relationship Name of related
{Holding Company Svatantra Holdings Private Limited
Entity having significant influence Svatantra Microfin Private Limited
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) Ms. Ananyashree Birla, Chairperson
Mr. Vineet Chattree, Director (upto 27 September 2024)
Mr. Anil Chirania, Director
Mr. Jayesh Shah,Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f from 30 June 2023 and upto 31 October 2024) and Whole time Director (w.e.f
12 February 2024)
Mr. Deepabh Jain, Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f 4 November 2024)
Mr, Nitesh Amarnani, Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f 9 August 2024)
Mr. Sahil Mehta, Chief Financial Officer (upto 14 February 2024)
Ms. Tasneem Rangwala, Company Secretary
Transactions during the period with related parties :
(Amount in Rs. "Lacs")
Year ended Year ended
A Naie of trankactions 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Svatantra Microfin Private Limited Commission paid 6.53 -
Svatantra Holdings Private Limited Equity shares issued - 5,000.00
Svalantra Holdings Private Limited Corporate Guarantee given by holding company - 13,000.00
to bank for term loan taken by the Company
Mr. Jayesh Shah Remuneration 62.26 62.13
Mr. Deepabh Jain Remuneration 67.18 -
Mr. Sahil Mehta Remuneration - 70.40
Mr. Nitesh Amamani Remuneration 15.10 -
Ms. Tasneem Rangwala Remuneration 20.57 15.39
Note:
1. There is no outstanding balance with related parties except corporate gurantee as at 31 March 2025 of Rs 30,600 (previous year Rs Rs 30,600)
2. Employee benefits in relation to gratuity are calculated at the Company level and hence not i d in above di
Capltal management

The Company's capital management strategy is to effectively determine, raise and deploy capital to cover risk inherent in business and is meeting the capital adequacy requirements of National
l-bmthank(NHB).Thnsamsilﬂmahwghamlxnfsiﬂm.quﬂyandlwmbinaﬁmofahonhnnrbngtsrmueb(a-mybolppmpﬁata.m(:umpanydﬂmmmmammnlofnapml
required on the basis of and capital diture. The of the Company's capital is it using, among other that includes the ions issued by NHB.

The Company is subject to the capital adequacy requirements of the Reserve Bank of india (RBI). Under RBI's capital adequacy guidelines, the Company is required to maintain a capital adequacy ratio
consisting of Tier | and Tier Il Capital. Tha Tier-| capital, at any point of time, shall not be less than 10 per cant. Tha total of Tier-ll capital, at any point of time, shall not excead 100 par cant of Tier
capital, The minimum capital ratio as prescribed by RBI guidelines and applicable to the Comp isting of Tier | and Tier Il capital, shall not be less than 15 per cent of its aggregate risk weighted

assets on-balance sheet and of risk adjusted value of of-balance

Thocq:ilalmaturnlurmrﬁmrudunmuhasisnfnuwmwﬂymnmlyproﬂhdwurildsupaﬁuhmcommyapdicyhinlhewimNon-amidntharn‘al Company — Housing Finance
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 which currently permits HFCS to borrow up to 12 times of their net owned funds ("NOF").

There is no allocation of capital required as C: is primarily operaling in single segr i.e. fi ing, . The Company's policies in respect of capital G 1t is regularty reviewed by Board of
Directors.
Regulatory capital (Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)
As at 31 March 2025 |As at 31 March 2024
Equity share capital 7.472.70 7.472.70
Securilies premium 18,974.91 18,974.91
Retained earnings 7,963.84 6,347.57
Statutory reserves 3,503.60 2,788.48
Less:
- Deferred Revenue Expenditure (represent prepaid expenses) (318.76) (80.31)
- Intangible Asset (including under development) (15.92) (10.14)
-Deferred tax Asset (1,000.48) (758.21)
Tier | Capital 36,579.91 34,735.01
- Loss Allowances for loans - Stage -| 388.13 344.74
-Subordinated Liabilities 1,400.00 2,000.00
Tier Il Capital 1,798.13 2,344.74
Tier | + Tier il Capital 38,378.04 37,079.75

The Company has complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements over the reporied period.
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Loan covenants

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Gompany's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets the financial covenants atlached to the
interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breach in meeting these financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans
and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any barrowing in the current period. Loan covenants mainly include minimum CRAR of 25%
(Previous year 25%), ratic of total outstanding liability to total net worth to be less than or equal to 6 times ( previous year 6 times) etc.

Fair value measurement

instruments by category

Particulars

|Amount in Rs. 'Lacs'

March 2025

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Loans

Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities:

Trade payables

Other payables

Debt securities

Borrowings {other than debt securities)
Subordinated Liabilities
Lease Liabilities

Other liabilities
Total financlal liabilities

ing leasa i

Fair value hierarchy

Category | Asat31

As at 31 March 2024

Amortised Cost 5,938.17 7.083.34
Amortised Cost 2,625.34 2,478.92
Amortised Cost 224,282.46 201,239.11
Amortised Cost 383.44 206.82
233,229.41 211,018.19 |
Amartised Cost 41.13 14.75
Amartised Cost 343.79 253.79
Amortised Cost - 5,801,585
Amortised Cost 192,419.53 166,139.45
Amortised Cost 3,000.00 3,000.00
Amortised Cost 390.19 445.41
Amortised Cost 244.33 396.56

196,438.97 |

176,051.51 |

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received lo sell an asset or paid to Iransfer a fiability in an orderly iransaction
between market participants at the measurement date. This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments
that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the
Indian Accounting standard. These three levels are defined based on the ebservability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices, For example, listed equity instruments that have quoted markel price.

Level 2. The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the- counter derivatives) is determined using

valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as

an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in fevel 2.

ible on entity-specific

If all significant inputs required to fair value

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities,
contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost at each reporting date

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, ather financial assets, trade payables and other payables and other fi
to be approximately equal to the fair value due to their short term maturities.

Amount in Rs. 'Lacs'

Particulars

Financial assets measured at amortised)
cost

Cash and cash equivalent

Bank balance other than cash and cash
equivalents

Loans

Other financial assels

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities:

Trade payables

Other payables

Debt securities

Borrowings (other than debt securities)

Subordinated Liabilities

Lease Liabilities

Other financial liabilities (excluding lease
liabilities)

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Carrying Value | Fair Value _ Carrying Value Fair Value
5,038.17 5,938.17 7,093.34 7,003.34
2,625.34 2,625.34 2,478.92 2,478.92
224,282.46 225,784.62 201,239.11 202,853.43
38344 383.44 206.82 206.82 |
233, 211,018.18 212,632.51 |
41.13 41,13 14.75 14.75
343.79 343.79 253,79 253.79
- - 5,801.55 6,048.49
192,419.53 192,835.80 166,139.45 1686,565.76
3.000.00 3,058.46 3,000.00 3,108.15
390.19 | 390.19 44541 ] 445.41
244.33 I‘ 244.33 | 396.56 396.56
196,438.97 | 196,013.69 |  176,08.51 | 176,832.91

Total financial liabilities —

i) Loans - All the loans given are at variable rate of interest and hence, the fair value of floating rate loans are deemed to be equivalent to the carrying value.

ii) Borrowings - In case of floating rate borrowings its fair value are deemed to be equivalent to the carrying value adjusted with un-amortize transaction cost.
In case of fixed rate borrowings the fair value are cansidered equivalent to the carrying value as there is no material difference in interest rates.

iii) Debt securities are fixed liabilities - The fair value of debt securities are determined by discounting expected future confractual cash flows using current markel interest

rates charged for similar new loans (Level 3 inputs).

jii) Subordinated Liabilities - The fair value of subordinated Liabilities are determined by discounting expected future contractual cash flows using current market interest rates

charged for similar new loans (Level 3 inputs).
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Financlal rlsk management
Risk Management

The Company is exposed to certain financial risks namely credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk i.e. interest risk, foreign currency risk and price risk. The Company's
primary focus is to achieve better predictability of financial markets and minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance by effectively managing the risks on
its financial assets and liabilities.

The Principal objective in Company's risk management processes is to measure and monitor the various risks associated with the Company's and to follow policies and
procedures to address such risks. The Campany 's risk management framework is driven by its Board and its sub-committees including the Audit Committee, the Asset
Liability Management Committee and the Risk Management Committee. The Company gives due importance to prudent lending practices and have implemented suitable
measures for risk mitigation, which include verification of credit history from credit information bureaus, personal verification of a customer's business and residence,
valuation of collateral, technical and legal verifications, conservative loan to value, and required term cover for insurance.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obfigations on time or at a reasonable price. For the Company, liquidity risk arises
from obligations on account of financial liabilities —debt securities, borrowing, trade payables and other financial liabilities. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate cash reserves by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financiat assets and liabilities.

The tables below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's financial liabilities:

As at 31 March 2025 \Amount in Rs. 'Lacs'|

Within 1 year 1-5years 5-10 years I Beyond 10 years I Total
Trade payables 4113 - - - 41.13
Other payables 343.79 - - - 343.79
Debt securities* - - - -
Borrowings {other than debt securities)* 67,364.20 152,692.60 11,887.21 - 231,944.01
Subordinated Liabilities” 285.00 3,563.23 - - 3,848.23
Lease liabilities* 179.11 261.47 - - 440.58
Gther fi i 240.06 - = - 240.06
| Total 68.453.29 | 156,517.30 11,887.21 | - 236,857.80 |
*Includes interest payment
As at 31 March 2024 o o Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’|
| Within 1 year 1-5 years 5-10 years Beyond 10 years Total |
| Trade payables 14.75 - - - 1475 |
Other payables 253.79 - - - 253.79
Debt securities* 6,355.57 - - - 6,355.57
Borrowings (other than debt securities)* 57,747.99 131,372.44 11,068.92 - 200,189.35
Subordinated Liabilities* 284.61 3,848.23 - - 4,132.84
Lease liabilitias 211.41 363.78 46.17 - 621.35
| Other financial liabilities 392.81 - - - 392.81
Total 65,260.93 | 135,584.43 11,115.09 - 211,960.46

“Includes interest payment
Market risk

Forelgn currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency rates. The Company is not
exposed to foreign currency expasure.

Interest rate risk

The Company is subject to interest rate risk, since the rales of loans and borrowing might fluctuate over the tenure of instrument. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many
factors beyond control, including the monetary policies of the Reserve Bank of India, deregulation of the financial sector in India, domestic and inlernational economic and
political conditions, inflation and other factars. In order to manage interest rate risk, the Company seek to optimize borrowing profile between short-term and long-term loans.
The liabilities are categorized inte various time buckets based on their maturities and Asset Liability Management Committee supervise an interest rate sensitivity report
periodically for assessment of interest rate risks. Loans given 1o customers are at floating rate of interest.

Details of loans and borrowings
{Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs")

t

Particulars T

As at 31 March 2025| As at 31 March 2024
Loans (variable) = - 224,282.46 | 201,239.11 |
Total loans (variable) 224,282.46 201,239.11
Borrowings,debt securities and subordinate Liabilities
Borrowings (variable) 175,089.45 143,795.73
Berrowings (Fixed) 17,330.08 22,34372
Debt securities and subordinate Liabilities (fixed rate) 3.000.00 | 8,801.55
Total borrowings 195.419.53 | 174,941.00 |
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{iii)

Sensitivity analysis

The fallowing table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other variables being constant) of the Company's Statement of profit
and loss:
Amount in Rs. 'Lacs'

| Impact on profit before tax
Interest rate sensitivity* | Year ended Year ended
|31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Loans |
Increase by 50 basis points 1.121.41 1,006.20
Decrease by 50 basis points (1.121.410) (1.006.20)
Borrowings
Increase by 50 basis points (875.45) (718.98)
|Decrease by 50 basis points 1 875.45 718.98

* Holding alf other variables as constant

Price risk

Exposure

The Company's exposure price risk arises from investments held and classified in the balance sheet either as fair value through other comprehensive income or at fair value
through profit and loss. To manage the price risk arising from investments, the Company diversifies its porifolio of assets, The Company do not have any investment as on
balancesheet date either at fair value through other comprehensive income ar at fair value through profit and loss.

Credit risk

Credit risk Is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual obligations. The Company’s exposure to
credit risk is influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, investments, loan assets and other financial assets. The Company continuously monitors
defaults of customers and other counterparties and incorparates this information into its credit risk controls.

Credit risk management

Credit guality of assets

Credit risk is the single largest risk for the Company's business. Management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk. A centralised risk management function
oversees the risk management framework, which periodically presents an overview of credit risk of portfolio to the Risk Management Cammittee.

Credit-worthiness is checked and documented prior to signing any contracts, based on market information. Management endeavours to improve its underwriting standards ta
reduce the credit risk the Company is exposed to from time to time.

Expected Credit loss (ECL):

Credit Quality of Loans assets:

The following table sets oul information about credit quality of loans measured at amortised cost based on days pasl due information. The amount represents gross carrying
amaunt,

y _Amount in Rs. 'Lacs';
As at 31-03-2025 | As at 31-03-2024

Gross carrying value

Stage 1 212,696.16 193,773.91
Stage 2 7,629.32 4,806.68
Staue 3 ! 6,556.83 4,257.46 |
ITotaI Gross carrying value as at reporting date 226,882.31 202,838.05 |

Management of credit risk for financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents and bank decosits
Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated deposits from banks and financial institutions across the
country.

Other financial assets mez: d at amortized cust
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost includes loans and advances to employees security deposits insurance claim receivables and other recoverable. Credit
risk related to these other financial assets is managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously.

Loans

The Company closely monitors the credil-worthiness of the borrower's through interal systems and appraisal process to assess the credit risk and define credit limits of
bamower thersby limiting the credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual counterparties. These processes include a detailed appraisal
methodology identification of risks and suitable structuring and credit risk mitigation measures. The Company assesses increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis for
amounts loan receivables thal become past due and default is considered to have occurred when amounts receivable become 90 days past due. The Company has
restructured or rescheduled in the terms of the certain loan accounts in the current year on account of COVID-19 related restructuring measures prescribed by the Reserve
Bank of iIndia. This has resutted in increased management estimation over determination of losses for such restructured loans.

Collective assessment of ECL

Since the Company is into retail lending business to rural and semi-urban areas which are are greater in number but lesser in value, there is no significant credit risk of any
individual customer that may impact Company adversely, and hence the Company has calculated its ECL allowances on a collective basis. ECL assessment has been done
on an individual basis on the Company's insignificant exposure on corporate and builder loans.

Inputs considered in the ECL. model

Definition of default

The Company considers a financial instrument as defaulled and considers it as Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for expected credit loss (ECL) calculations, when the assets
become more than 80 days past due on its contractual payments and these assets continue to be classified as Stage 3 till the entire overduss are received, in accordance
with the RBI guidelines and the ECL Policy.

Exposure at default (EAD)

The EAD represents expected outstanding exposure subject to credit risk at the period/date, when defautt is considered. The Company does cash flow mapping based on
contractual maturity for loans in Stage I, using the exposure at defsult in future years and the probability of default estimation based on macro variables. For stage | and
stage I, as an approximation balance sheet outstanding is used.

Loss given default (LGD)

It is defined as the percentage risk of exposure that is not expected to be recovered in the event of default. Based on an analysis of historical data, the Gompany has
estimated the loss given default, using historical recovery experience, potential sale procead and racovery cost. This is referred to as the workout method. Such recoveries
are discounted using interest rate of the loans. While calculating LGD percentage, 100% recoveries are estimated for the cases where the recoveries are absolutely certain
to happen within a short period of time,

Probability of Default (PD)

“Probability of default” {PD) is defined as the probability of whether the borrowers will default on their obligations in the future. For assets which are in Stage 1, a 12-month
PD is required. For Stage 2 asset's a lifetime PD is required while Stage 3 assets are considered to have a 100% PD. Historical DPD data is utilized to calculate through the
cycle PD. PD analysis tracks the migration behaviour of a static pool of loans active at the end of each year across different buckets- Current, 1-29 DPD, 30-59 DPD, 60-89
DPD, 90+ DPD for the 12 month and lifetime period.

Forward looking information

Farward looking information is incorporated in the measurement of probability of default and consequently in measurement of ECL. The Vasicek model is used for converting
the TTC (Through-the-Cycle) PD inta FC (Forecast) PD. The model calculates an AC {Asset Correlation) factor and converts the probability using the macro-economic
variable selected which is GDP growth rate. Based on the cansideration of a variety of external actual and forecast information, the Company forms a 'base case’ view of
the future direction of GDP growth rate as well as a representative range of other possible forecast scenarios. This pracess involves developing two or more additional
economic scenarios and considering the relative probabilities of each outcome. The base case represents a most likely outcome while the other scenarios represent more
optimistic and more pessimistic outcomes.

Further, in the global pandemic Cavid 19, management overlays are applied in determining forward locking scenarios. It is considered by evaluating all relevant internal and
reasonably available external data namely Industrial research by various credit rating agencies.
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Significant increase in credit risk

An assessment of whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition is performed at each reporting period by considering the change in the risk of default
occurring over the remaining life of the loan exposure. However. unless identified at an earlier stage, the Company have determined all assels are deemed to have suffered
a significant increase in credit risk when 30 days past due,

The Company have also conducted a guantitative assessment of significant increase in credit risk (SICR) of the loan portfolic with respect to the covid 19 pandemic
scenaric, based oh analysis of percentage increase in prebability of default.

Policy for write off of Loan Assets

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when there is no realistic prospect of further recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income thal could generate sufficient cash flows ta repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets
thal are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities under the Company's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any
recoveries made are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Collateral

The Company helds collateral to mitigate credit risk associated with financial assets. The main types of collateral include residential properties. The collateral presented
relates to instruments (loans) that are measured at amortised cost.

{Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)

Particular Category of Collateral Le 3'2:12;“3":" As at 31 March 2024
Financial Assets-Loans* Proierties |amount of collateral _ 478.532.85 39925?22
*Collateral held against Stage 3 Assels of Rs 17,780.74 Lacs (as at 31 March 2024 10414.89 Lacs)
Credit Risk exposure
i) Expected credit iosses for financial assels other than loans — — __(Amountin Rs. 'Lacs’)
As at 31 March 2025 d gross credit Carrying amount net of
carrying amt at losses Impalrment provislon
default
Cash and cash equivalents 5,938.17 - 593817 |
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 2,625.34 - 2,625.34
Security deposits 245.54 - 245,54
Other financial assets 95.82 | - - 96.82
|As at 31 March 2024 = — T d g:uss E d credit Carrying amount net of
carrying amt at losses impairment provision
default
L o
|Cash and cash equivalent 7,093.34 - 7.093.34
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 2,478.92 - 2,478.92
Security deposits 87.07 - 87.07
Other financial assets - | 77.35 - 77.35

i} Expected credit loss for loans

Changes in the gross carrying amount and the corr ECL in relation to |

loans from beginning to

end of reporting period:

[Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs’)

Particulars Staye 1 Staye 2 Stage 3

Gross carrying amount as at April 1 2023 145,965.05 3.449.41 3,145.79
Assets originated 100,520.65 713.06 114.41
Net transfer between stages

Transfer to stage 1 1,286.52 (1,044.27) (241.25)
Transfer to stage 2 (3.662.88) 3,696.16 (33.28)
Transfer to stage 3 (1,269.17) {1.109.10) 2,378.27
Assets gnised ar d lincludini write offs) _ (49,085.25 1B98.,58) | 1,106.48
Gross carrying amount as at March 31 2024 193,773.91 | __4,806.68 4, 6
Assets originated 56,585.41 223.27 37.61
Net transfer between stages

Transfer to stage 1 1,130.61 (974.80) (155.81)
Transfer to staga 2 (5,524.22) 5,667.37 (33.15)
Transfer to stage 3 (2,248.48) (1,111.80) 3,360.26
|Assets derecoanised or collected (includiny; write offs) 871401 909.54)
Gross carrying amount as at March 31 2025 o - 7.629.32 [ 6.556.83
Reconciliation of loss allowance provision from beginning to end of reporting period:

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3* .
Loss allowance as on April 1 2023 232.32 152,57 711.38
Assets originated 161.10 185.04 504,71
Net transfer between stages

Transfer to stage 1 108.25 {51.00) (57.25)
Transfer to stage 2 (10.09) 18.00 (7.91)
Transfer to stage 3 (4.64) {42.56) 47.20
Assets derecounised or collected lincluding write offs) = - — 142200 135,31/ 170.88/|
Loss allowance as on March 31 2024 344.74 226.74 1.027.45
Assets originated 140.36 319.38 975.95
Net transfer between stages

Transfer to stage 1 87.65 (48,22) (41.43)
Transfer to stage 2 (23.85) 32.70 (8.85)
Transfer to stage 3 (7.13) (55.39)| 63.52
Assets derecoanised or collected 'including write offs) 143.64) 148.481 1244.65
Loss allowance as on March 31 2025 398.13 429.73 | 1,771.99

*1234 loan accounts in stage 3 as on 31 March 2025 ( 887 as on 31 March 2024).

Concentration of loans

The Compan) monitars concentration of credit risk on the basis of housin I/Nen housin| in which the borrower operates;

Concentration by type of loan

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024 |

Housing 187,248.01 171,698.36
Non housing 39,565.35 31,085.77
|Gross carrying Amount 226.813.36 202.784.13
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Retirement benefit plans

(A) Defined benefit obligation

39,

-

39.2

39.3

The Company has the following defined benefits plans:

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years of service is eligible for a gratuity on separation at 15 days basic salary {last
drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded with the insurance campanies in the form of qualifying insurance policy.

During the year 2023-24 the Company created "Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited Employees’ Group Gratuity Fund". The Trust is recognised by income
tax authorities and administered through trustees. Contributions to the Trust are invested in a scheme with a insurance Company as permitted by law in India.

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profil and loss and the funded status and amounts recognized in the
balance sheet for the gratuity pian. Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

1. A. Actuarial Risk:

It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to ane of the following reasons:

Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escalation will result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than
expected.Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than
expected. The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation date.

2, Investment Risk:

For funded pians that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In
such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are
significant changes in the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

3. Liquidity Risk:

Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign/retire from the
company there can be strain on the cashflows.

4. Market Risk:

Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and flucluations of the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the
discount rate. The discount rate refiects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice
versa. This assumption depends on the yields on the corporate/govemment bonds and hence the valuation of fiability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the
valuation date.

5. Legislative Risk:

Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the legislation/regulation. The government may amend the
Payment of Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and
the same will have to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

As per Ind AS-19 'Employee Benefits', the disclosure of Employee benefits &s definsd in the Standard are given below:

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 19, actuarial valuation was done in respect of the aforesaid defined benefit plan of gratuily based on the following
assumptions:

{Particutars | J
i As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
| Actuarial assumptions |
iMortality rate Indian Assured Indian Assured
| Lives(2012-14} Lives(2012-14)
| Ultimate Mortality Uttimate Mortality

Rates Rates
1 Discount rate (per annum) 6.93% 7.21%
{Rate of salary increase 7.50% 7.50%
{Withdrawal (Rate of smiloyee tumover B} 1% at all ages 1% st all ages

—_— |Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’|
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended 31
31 March 2025 March 2024
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 303,73 196.94
Interest expense 21.90 1477
Current service cost 112,59 80.29
(Benefit Paid From the Fund) (11.97) {7.74)
(Benefit paid directly by the employer) - -
Actuarial (gains) / losses on abligations - due to change in demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligations - due to change in financial assumptions 20.38 15.33
Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligations - due to experience 23.78 4.14
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 422.85 303.73
Change in fair value of plan assets:
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended 31
31 March 2025 March 2024

Plan assets at the beginning of the year 209.42 -
Interest Income 15.10 -
Expected return on ptan assets - -
Actual company contributions 100.00 200.00
Benefits paid - -
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Plan Assets - -
Retum an Plan Assets, Excludini Interest Income = 2.93 = $.42
[Plan assets at the end of the year = = 1 327.45 209.42 |
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39.4 [Particulars " | Asat3tMarch | Asat31March 2024
. S ——— . ol e |
Assets and liabilities r ised in the shest |
Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 422.85 303.73
Fair value of plan assets (327.45) (209.42)
Net (liability) / asset recognised in the balance sheet 95.40 94.31
*Gratuity Pravision is in excess of Fair Value of Assets as on March 31, 2025 as disclosed under "Note 24 - Provisions" is after netting off amount paid to trust
39.5 recognised in the Si of Profit and Loss
Sp— ... \AmountinRs. 'Lai
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ende
31 March 2025 March 2024
Current service cost 71259 80.29
Pasl service cost -
Net interest (income)/ expense 6.80
Net gratuity cost r ised in the current year 118.39 .
39.6 E r i in the of Other comprehensive income {OCI)
(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs])
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended 31
31 March 2025 March 2024
'Actusn'al loss/{gain) due to change in financial assumptions I 20,36 | 15.33 i
Actuarial loss/ (gain) due to experience adjustments {23.78) 4.14
Retum on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 2.93)| 9.42)]
Total surement cost for the year r ised in OCI (6.33)] 10.05 |
39,7 Reconciliation of net asset / (liability) recognised:
{Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended 31
31 March 2025 March 2024
Opening Net Liatﬁhy 9431 196.54
Expenses recognised at the end of peried 119.39 95.06
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income (6.33) 10.05
Net Liability / (Asset) Transfer In - -
.Net (Liability) / Asset Transfer Out i - -
Benefit paid i (11.97) (7.74)
Employer's Contribution (100.00 (200.00
Net L yl(Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 9540 94.31
39.8 The Company intends to contribute to the trust the amount as per the actuarial valuation in the next year The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of
fair value of total plan assets are as follows:
| Particulars For the year ended ‘For the year ended 31
31 March 2025 March 2024
|Investment with insurer N T | 100%] 100%
39.9 Sensitivity Analysis:
. = (Amount n Rs. "Lacs) _
{Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended 31
31 March 2025 March 2024
iDelta effect of +1% change in rate of discounting (3_55:56)' (254._8}1\)_
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of discounting 507.17 365.21
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of salary increase 505.81 364.39
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of salary increase (355.32) (254.55)
39.10 Maturity analysis of projected benefit obligation
{Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs’}
Year
For the year ended  For the year ended 31
. | 31 March 2025 March2024
1 year 2517 21.03
Sum of years 210 5 18.80 13.65
Sum of years B to 10 65.32 43.63
Sum of vears 11 and above 1.625.40 | 1,325.11

(B) Defined contribution plan

40

0]

The Company contributes towards provident fund for employees which is the defined contribution plan for qualifying employees. Under this Scheme, the Campany is required
to contribute specified percentage of the payroll cost to fund the benefits. The Company has recognised Rs. 314.34 Lacs and Rs.250.94 Lacs towards provident fund
contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, respectively.

Leases

Company as lessee

The Company's leased assets primarily consist of leases for ffice premises & guest houses. Leases of office premises and guest houses generally have lease term
between 1 to 5 years. The Company has applied shart term ption for leases for premi accordingly are excluded from Ind AS 116.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period:
Amount in Rs. 'Lacs']

Particulars Total

,As at 1 April 2023 265.87
Additions. t 31233
Deletion during the year (18.11)
Depreciation expenses for the year {130.41)
|As at March 31, 2024 R 428.68

{ Additions ’ 154.51

i Deletion during the year | - ‘
Depreciation expenses for the year I (169.72)!
| at March 31, 2025 i 41347
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(ii)

Particulars - o Total

As at 1 April 2023 265.00
Addilions 213.09
Accretion of interest 39.81
Deduction 79.41
Payment (151.80)
|As at March 31, 2024 I 445.41 |
|Additions - 97.95
Accretion of interest 39.52
Deduction -
Payment 192,69}
|As at March 31, 2025 390.19 |

The maturity analysis of [ease liabilities are disclosed in Note 38

The effective inlerest rate for lease liabilitias is 11%, with maturity between 2021-2026

(i)

The following are the amounts recognis
Particulars

d in profit or loss:

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and the movements during the period:

Amountin Rs. ‘Lacs’|

For the year ended

31 March 2025

\Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’|

For the year ended 31
March 2024

Deprecialion expense of right-of-use assets 169.72 | 137.68
Finance cost on lease liabilities 39.52 39.81
*Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 37.08 23.86

Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (included in other expenses)

\Variable Isase yayments iif any. included in other expenses| -
* These leases are excluded from lease accounting under IndAS 116
The Company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs.228.77 Lacs in FY 2024-25 (Rs.150.37 Lacs in FY 2023-24).

a1 Segment information

411 Business segment
Operaling segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reperting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM regularly monitors
and reviews the operating result of the whale Company as one segment of "Financing®. Thus, as defined in Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”, the Company's entire
business falls under this one operational segment.

41,2 Entity wide disclosures
No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or counterparty amounted to 10% or more of the Company's total revenue in year ended 31 March 2025 and
31 March 2024,
The Company operates in single geography i.e. india and therefore, geographical information is not required to be disclosed separately.

42  Conling and
\. Contingent Liabilities: Rs. 99.71 Lacs* (as at March 31, 2024 Rs. 114,86 Lacs)
{I. Undrawn Commitment given to Borrowers: Rs,11,847.44 Lacs (as at March 31, 2024 Rs.13,961.35 Lacs)
Hll. Bank guarantee issued by Banks favoring the NHB for refinance facilities: Rs. 2,175 Lacs (as at March 31, 2024 Rs. 2,175 Lacs)
* Includes disputed income tax demand against which the Company has preferred an appeal before Commissioner of Income Tax {Appeals) of Rs 89.71 Lacs (as at March
31, 2024 Rs. 113.80 Lacs)

43 Principal Business Criteria
Principal business criteria RBI vide its circular Number RBI/2020-21/60/DOR/NBFC (HFC) CC No 118/03.10.136/2020-21 dated October 22, 2020 has defined Principal
Business Criteria for HFCs. Details of principal business criteria as on March 31, 2025 is as follows.
‘ Particulars As at 31 March 2025 | As at 31 March 2024
i% of total asset towards housing finance 78.95% 80.36%
| % of total asset towards housint finance for individuals 78.50% 79.17%
| Total |

44 Following disclosures as required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been made to the extent information available

with the Company :
{Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs’
As at
31 March 2024

Particulars As at

31 March 2025

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid ta any supplier as at the end of the
accounting ysar

{ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of - -
the accounting year

(ill) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the - -
Micra, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2008, along with
the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during each accounting year.

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in . -
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day|
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of . -
each accounting year; and

(vi) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in . -
the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above
are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance
as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006
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451

45.2

453

45.4

45,5

Corporate social responsibility (CSR) expenditure

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR committee has been formed by the Company. The areas for CSR
activities are eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting preventive health care and sanitation and making available
safe drinking water, promoting education, promoting gender equality, empowering women and ensuring environmental

sustainability.

Amount spent during the year on:

{Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs')

As at 31-03-2025 As at 31-03-2024
|
. Amount Amount
Particulars
= Amount spent unpaid/ Total Amount spent unpaid/ Total
provision | provision
Construction - - - -] - -
/acnuisition of any asset o |
On purpose other than 35.12 | 15.08 50.20 24.00 10.45 34.45 |
above |
— |

In case of Section 135(5) unspent amount:

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)

Opening Balance Amount Amount |Amount spent Closing |
deposited in required | during the Balance
Specified to be spent year
Fund of Sch. | during the
VIl within 6 year
months
19.91 |Not Applicable 50.20 50.07 | 20.04
In case of Section 135(5) excess amount spent
Opening Balance Amount Amount spent Closing
required during the Balance
to be spent year
during the
year |
Not Applicable
In case of Section 135(6) details of ongoing projects
(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’) )
Amount
. N Amount spent .
Opening Balance required tc') be during the year Closing Balance
spent during
With In Separate the year From In Separate With In Separate CSR
Company CSR unspent Company's | CSR unspent Company | unspent Account
Account Bank Account| Account
10.42 9.49 50.20 35.12 14.85 15.08 5.00
|

Note: Rs 15.10 lacs available with the Company as of 31 March 2025 has been transferred to the unspend CSR account on 29

April 2025.

{Amount in Rs. 'Lacs'

Year ended

Year ended

Nature of Expense on Corporate social responsibility 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

!Employment enhancing vocational skill and livelihood

8.17 9.50

enhancement
Disaster management,includng refief, rehabilitation and 575
reconstruction activities -
Promoting preventive health care and sanitation 7.50 22.50
Promoting education 7.50 -
Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, 0.20
protection of flora and fauna, animal welfare, agroforestry,
conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of
soil, air and water" -
Enhancing vocational skill amony diffrently abled children 6.00 -

Total | 3512 | 32.00
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Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

Assets As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Within After Total Within After Total
1 year 1 year 1 year 1 year

Financial assets

|Cash and cash equivalents 5,938.17 - 5,938.17 7,093.34 - 7,093.34
Bank balances other than cash and - 2,625.34 2,625.34 - 2,478.92 2,478.92
cash equivalents

Loans 14,214.26 210,068.20 224,282.46 13,943.14 187,295.97 201,239.11
| Other financial assets 241.30 142.14 383.44 167.63 39.19 206.82

|
INon financial assets

Current tax assets (net) 147.90 - 147.90 93.56 - 93.56
Deferred tax assets (net) - 1,000.46 1,000.46 - 758.21 758.21
Investment property - 2.51 2.51 - 2.51 2.51
Property, plant and equipment - 411.59 411.59 - 304.81 304.81
Intangible assets under development 2.58 2.58 - -
Right of use asset - 413.47 41347 - 428.68 428.68
|Other intangible assets - 13.34 13.34 - 10.14 10.14
Other non financial assets 344 .34 - 34434 129.03 - 129.03
ITotal assets - 20,885.97 214,679.63 235,565.60 | 21,426.70 191,318.43 212,745.13
Liabilities ' '

Financial liabilities
Trade payables

- Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises

- Total outstanding dues of creditors 41.13 - 41.13 14.75 - 14.75
other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises
Other payables 343.79 - 343.79 253.79 - 253.79
Debt securities - - - 5,801.55 - 5,801.55
Borrowings 52,800.27 139,619.26 192,419.53 | 45,130.71 121,008.74 166,139.45
Subordinated Liabilities - 3,000.00 3,000.00 - 3,000.00 3,000.00
Other financial liabilities 346.51 288.01 634.52 553.96 288.01 841.97

Non financial liabilities

Provisions 106.66 139.99 246.65 104.26 80.68 184.94
QOther non financial liabilities 276.41 - 276.41 234.72 - 234.72
Total liabilities | 53,914.77  143,047.26 196,962.03 | 52,093.74  124,377.43  176,471.17
[Net Equity | (33,028.80) 71,632.37 38,603.57 (30,667.04) 66,941.00 36,273.96

Note: The Company has undrawn facilities amounting to Rs 34,250 Lacs as at 31st March 2025 (Rs 28,729 Lacs as at 31st March
2024).
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Comparision beetween IRACP and impairment allowamnce made under IND AS 109 as at 31 March 2025

(Amount is in Rs. 'Lacs')

Asset Classification as per Asset Gross Carrying Loss Net Carrying | Provisions | Difference
RBI Norms classification | Amount as per | Allowances Amount required as | between Ind
as Ind AS (Provisions) per IRACP AS 109
per Ind AS 109 as required norms* provisions
under Ind AS and IRACP
109 norms
Performing assets
Stage 1 212,696.16 398.13 212,298.03 798.84 (400.71)
Stage 2 7,629.32 429.73 7,199.59 §2.61 347.12
Subtotal 220,325.48 827.86 219,497.62 881.45 (53.59)
Non performing assets
Substandard Stage 3 3,516.84 947.46 2,569.38 530.47 416.99
Doubtful - upto 1 year Stage 3 1,705.55 476.04 1,229.51 428.91 47.13
1to 3 years Stage 3 903.63 235.84 667.79 369.55 (133.71)
More than 3 years Stage 3 430.81 112.65 318.16 454.23 (341.58)
Subtotal of doubtful 3,039.99 824.53 2,215.46 1,252.69 (11.17)
Loss Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal of NPA 6,556.83 1,771.99 4,784.84 1,783.16 (11.17)
Total Stage 1 212,696.16 398.13 212,298.03 798.84 (400.71)
Stage 2 7.629.32 429.73 7,199.59 82.61 347.12
Stage 3 6,556.83 1,771.99 4,784.84 1,783.16 (11.17)
Total 226,882.31 2,599.85 | 224,282.46 2,664.61 (64.76)

* Including addition provision as per RBI guidelines

Comparision between IRACP and impairment allowance made under IND AS 109 as on 31 March 2024

(Amount is in Rs. 'Lacs')

Asset Classification as per Asset Gross Carrying Loss Net Carrying | Provisions | Difference
RBI Norms classification | Amount as per | Allowances Amount required as | between Ind
as Ind AS (Provisions) per IRACP AS 109
per Ind AS 109 as required norms* provisions
under Ind AS and IRACP
109 norms
Performing assets
Stage 1 193,773.91 344.74 193,429.17 801.87 (457.13)
Stage 2 4,806.68 226.74 4,579.94 73.34 153.40
Subtotal 198,580.59 571.48 198,009.11 875.21 (303.73)
Non performing assets
Substandard Stage 3 2,411.78 534.97 1,876.81 364.21 170.76
Doubtful - upto 1 year Stage 3 942,72 251.33 691.39 238.64 12.69
1to 3 years Stage 3 664.20 177.36 486.84 277.85 (100.50)
More than 3 years Stage 3 238.76 63.79 174.97 249.70 (185.90)
Subtotal of doubtful 1,845.67 492.48 1,353.20 766.19 (102.95)
Loss Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal of NPA 4,257.46 1,027.45 3,230.01 1,130.40 (102.95)
Total Stage 1 193,773.91 344.74 193,428.17 801.87 (457.13)
Stage 2 4,806.68 226.74 4,579.94 73.34 153.40
Stage 3 4,257.46 1,027.45 3,230.01 1,130.40 (102.95)
Total 202,838.05 1,598.93 | 201,239.12 2,005.61 (406.68)

* Including addition provision as per RBI guidelines
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48.1

438.2

48.3

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related disclosures. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The Management believes that these estimates are prudent and reasonable and are based upon the Management's best
knowledge of current events and actions. Actual results could differ from these estimates and differences between actual results
and estimates are recognised in the periods in which the resuits are known.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are
more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the probability of the future taxable
income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised.

Business model assessment

The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to
achieve a particular business objective. Based on this assessment of current conditions and future business plans of the
Company, the management has measured its financial assets at amortised cost as the asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows, and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (the 'SPPI criterion'). This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant
evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the
performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company
monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised
prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the
business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company's continuous assessment of whether the business
model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has
been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets
The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors
which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Expected credit loss (‘ECL’)

The measurement of expected credit loss allowance far financial assets measured at amortised cost requires use of complex
models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behavior (e.g. likelihood of customers defaulting
and resulting losses). The Company makes significant judgements with regard to the following while assessing expected credit
loss:

Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;
Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of product/market and the associated
ECL; and

Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.
Development of ECL model, including the various formulae and the choice of inputs

It has been the Company's policy to regularly review its model in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary

Provisions

At each bhalance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Company assesses the
requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual future outcome may be different from
this judgement.

Contingencies:

Management has estimated the possible outflow of resources at the end of each annual reporting financial year, if any, in respect
of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with
accuracy.

Significant estimates

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the
expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change
the utility of assets.
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48.4

48.5

48.6

48.7

Defined benefit obligation (DBO)

Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation,
mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the
DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses. The assumptions used are disclosed in Note 40.

Fair value measurements

Management applies valuation technigues to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market quotes are not
available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the
instrument. For further details about determination of fair value please see Note 37.

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination aptions — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if
it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in
evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is
within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of
significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

When it is reasonably certain to exercise extension option and not to exercise termination option, the Company includes such
extended term and ignore termination option in determination of lease term.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate
(IBR) to measure |ease liabilities. The Company has taken indicative rates from its bankers/weighted average rate of recent
borrowings and used them for Ind AS 116 calculation purposes.
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Disclosure pursuant to Reserve Bank of India Circular DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.N0.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated December, 2021
pertaining to Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies- Housing Finance Companies as
on 31 March 2025
i) Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)
Sr - Number of Amount % of Total | % of Total
No. Significant (Rs. Lacs) deposits Liabilities
Counterparties
1 23 187,176.33 - 95.03%
*Note : Total Liabilities has been computed as Total Liabilities less Equity share capital less Other Equity
iiy Top 20 large deposits (amount in Rs. crore and % of total deposits)
Sr No Number Of Counter Party Amount In Lacs | % of total
deposits
Nil
iy Top 10 borrowings (amount in Rs. crore and % of total borrowings)
Sr No Number Of Counter Party Amount In Lacs | % of total
1| B . Borrowing
1 10 127,567.69 65.28%
iv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product
Sr No. Name of the Amount % of Total
instrument/product (Rs. Lacs) | Liabilities
1 Non Convertible Debenture 3,000.00 1.52%
2 Bank Loans 184,176.33 93.51%

Stock Ratios:

Particulars %
|a) Commercial papers as a % of total public funds 0.00%
(b) Commercial papers as a % of total liabilities 0.00%
(c) Commercial papers as a % of total assets 0.00%
{b) Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one vear) as a % of total public funds 0.00%
(c) Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total liabilities 0.00%
d) Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total assets 0.00%
(c) Other short-term liabilities, if any as a % of total oublic funds 0.00%
(c) Other short-term liabilities, if any as a % of total liabilities 26.81%
(c) Other short-term liahilities, if any as a % of total assets 22.41%

(vi) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management

The Company's Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management
framework. The Board of Directors has established the Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCQ), which is responsible for
developing and monitoring risk management policies. The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and
analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. The
risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company'’s activities.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

50 Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2022-23/26 DOR.ACC.REC.N0.20/21.04.018/2022-23 Disclosures in Financial Statements-
Notes to Accounts of NBFCs dated April 19, 2022

50.1 Sectoral exposure

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Total Gross NPAs | Percentag | Total Exposure | Gross NPAs | Percentage
Exposure e of (includes on of
(includes on Gross balance Gross NPAs
balance NPAs to sheet and to
sheet and off total offbalance total
balance exposure sheet exposure in
sheet in exposure) that sector
exposure) that
secior
1. Agriculture and Allied Actlvities - - - - - -
2, Industry - - - - . -
3. Services
i. Commercial Real Estate 1,440.38 1,263.38 87.71% 2,712.14 649.48 23.95%
Total of Services 1,440.38 2,712.14
4. Personal loans
i. Individual Housing |Including Priority Sector Housina) 185,807.63 4,699.78 2.53% 182,224.47 3,211.17 1.76%
ii. Loan Against Property 39,634.30 593.68 1.50% 31,808.87 396.81 1.25%
iii. Loan to Employees 68.95 - 0.00% 53.91 - 0.00%

50.2 Related Party

i) For the period April 2024 to March 2025

Particulars Holding Subsidiary | Associate / Key Relative of Others Total Maximum
Company Joint Managerial KMP outstanding
Ventures Personnel during the
(KMP) year
Borrowings - - - - - - - 5
Deposits - - - - - = - =
Placement of deposits - - - - - = - -
Advances - - - - - - - -
Investments - - - - - - B

Purchase of fixed / other assets - - - - - - - -
Sale of fixed / other assets - - - - - - - -
Interest paid - - - : - B N -
Interest received - - - - - - -
Others
Inter Corporate Deposit Given - - ] - - - . E
Inter Corporate Deposit received - - - - - - -

ii) For the period April 2023 to March 2024
Particulars Holding Subsidiary | Associate / Key Relative of Others Total Maximum
Company Joint Managerial KMP outstanding
Ventures Personnel during the
(KMP) year

Borrowings - - - - - - - -

Deposits - - - - - - - -

Placement of deposits - - - - - - - -

Advances - - - - - - - -

Investments - - - - - - - -

Purchase of fixed / other assets - - - - - - - -
Sale of fixed / other assets - - - - - - - -
Interest paid - - B - - - - -
Interest received - - - - s - - -
Others
Inter Corporate Deposit Given*® - - - - - N - -
Inter Corporate Deposit received” - - E - = - -




Disclosure of complaints

1. Summary information on complaints received by the NBFCs from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman

As at 31 As at 31
Particulars March 2025 | March 2024
Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers
1) Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year 0 0
2) Number of complaints received during the year 17 10
3) Number of complaints disposed during the year 17 10
Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC a 0
4 Number of complaints pending at the end of the year 0 0
Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman
5 Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman NA NA
Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office of Ombudsman NA NA
Of 5, number of complaints resolved through recanciliation/mediation/advisories issued by Office of Ombudsman NA NA
Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of Ombudsman against the NBFC NA NA
Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time (other than those appealed) NA NA
2. Top five grounds of complaints received by the NBFCs from customers as at 31 March 2025
Grounds of complaints, (i.e. complaints relating to} Number of |Number of| % increase/ Number of |Of 5, number
complaints | complaint |decrease in the | complaints of
pending at |s received| number of pending at | complaints
the during the| complaints the end of pending
beginning year received over the year beyond 30
of the previous days
the year year
1 2 3 4 5 6
Loan amount 2 0% -
Documents related (Loan statement, Orignal Documents) 1 -67% -
Others - 11 450% -
CLSS Subsidy not received - 3 0% -
Top five grounds of complaints received by the NBFCs from customers as at 31 March 2024
Grounds of complaints, (i.e. plaints relating to) Number of |Number of| % increase/ Number of | Of 5, number
complaints | complaint |decrease in the | complaints of
pending at |s received number of pending at | complaints
the during the| complainis the end of pending
beginning year received over the year beyond 30
of the previous days
the year year
1 2 3 4 5 6
Loan amount 2 0% -
Documents related (Loan statement, Orignal Documents) 3 0%
Others - 2 0% -
CLSS Subsidy not received - 3 -40%




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

51 Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBUDOR/2021-22/86 DOR.STR,REC.51/21.04.048/2021-22 Disclosures in

Financial Statements- Notes to Accounts of NBFCs dated September 24,2021

Details of stressed loans transferred during the year (to be made separately for loans classified as NPA and SMA)

(Amount isin Rs. 'Lacs’)

| Particulars To ARCs | To permitted To other |
transferees | transferees
(NBFC)
No: of accounts - 1
Aggregate principal outstanding of loans transferred il i 230|
Weighted average residual tenor of the loans transferred o 0
Net book value of loans transferred (at the time of transfer| _ 207 |
Aggregate consideration — - 3 - 230 |
Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years -

There are no Loans acquired during the year from Lenders and ARC
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February 17,2021 under

Master Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021.

Capital to risk assets ratio CRAR")

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of capital to risk assets ratio under NHB Guidelines:

Particulars a “As at 31 March As at 31
o o 2025 March 2024
i} CRAR (%) 31.93% 34.76%
i) CRAR -~ Tier | Capital (%) 30.43% 32.56%
iiy CRAR — Tier Il Capital (%) 1.50% 2.20%

iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier - il capital 1,400.00
v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments .

2,000.00

Reserve fund under section 29C of NHB Act, 1987

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs")

Particulars As at 31 March As at 31
- o I 2025 March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year
a) Statutory reserve ufs 29C of NHB Act, 1987 46.89 46.89
b} Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1) (viii} of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes 2,741.60 2,115.22
of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
2,788.49 2,162.11

Addition/ Appropriation/ Withdrawal during the year
Add:
a) Amount transferred u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987 - -
b} Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1) (viii} of Income Tax Act, 1981 taken into account for the purposes 715.12 626.38
of Statutory reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Less:
a) Amount appropriated from Statutory reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 - -
b) Amount withdrawn from the special reserve u/s 36(1) (viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 which has been - -
taken into account for the purposes of provision u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Balance at the end of the year
a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987 46.89 46.89
b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1) (viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the 3,456.72 2,741.60
purposes of Statutory reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
<) Total - - ~3,503.61 2,788.49
Investments
Particulars As at 31 March As at 31

2025 March 2024

Value of investments

i) Gross value of investments

(a) In India -
(b) Outside India -
ii) Provision for depreciation

(a) In India -
(b) Outside India -
iiiy Net value of investments

(a) In India -
(b) Outside India

Movement of provision held towards depreciation on investments

i) Opening balance -
ii) Add: Provision made during the year -
iii) Less: write off / written back of excess provision during the year -

iv] Closing balancs =
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.N0.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February 17,2021 under
Master Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021.

Derivatives

Forward rate agreement (FRA) / Interest rate swap (IRS)

The Company has not entered into any transaction in forward rate agreements and interest rate swaps during the year ended on 31 March 2025 and 31

March 2024.

Exchange traded interest rate (IR) derivative

The Company has not entered into any transaction in exchange traded interest rate derivatives during year ended on 31 Mar 2025 and 31 Mar 2024.

Securitisation

The Company has not entered into any Securitisation during year ended on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

Unsecured advances

There are no unsecured advances against intangible securities such as rights, licenses, authority as collateral security during the year ended on 31 March

2025 and 31 March 2024.

Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives

The Company has not entered into any derivative transaction during the year 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

Disclosure of penalties imposed by NHB/RBI and other regulators

During the year ended on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the Company has not paid any penalty for non-compliance of any provision of the Housing

Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010.

Rating assigned by credit rating agency and migration of rating

As at 31 March 2025

(i) Date of Rating

31-May-24

04-Oct-24

(i) Name of Rating Agency

CRISIL Ratings Limited

CARE Ratings Limited

(iii) Rating of Products

{a) Long term Bank facilities CRISIL A+/Stable CARE AA-/Stable
(b) Debentures CRISIL A+/Stable CARE AA-/Stable
(c) Short term debt B - CARE A1+
As at 31 March 2024
(i} Date of Rating 07-Jun-23 07-Aug-23 08-Jan-24

(i) Name of Rating Agency

CRISIL Ratings Limited

CARE Ratings Limited

CARE Ratings Limited

(iii) Rating of Products

(a) Long term Bank facilities CRISIL A+/Stable CARE AA-/Stable CARE AA-/Stable
(b) Debentures CRISIL A+/Stable CARE AA-/Stable CARE AA-/Stable
(c) Short term debt - CARE A1+ CARE A1+
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No0.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February 17,2021 under
Master Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021,

Provisions and contingencies

and Loss

Impairment on financial Asset
Provision for Standard Asset - Stage |
Provision for Standard Asset - Stage Il

Provision for non-performing asset (Stage-ill)
Provision on Loan commitment

Tax expense:

- Current tax

- Deferred tax

-Earlier year tax adjustement

Employee benefit
Gratuity expense

Leave encashment

Break up of loan and advances and provisions thereon

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)

As at 31 March
2025

53.39
202.99
789.78

(1.06)

624.23

(243.84)

119.39
78.67

As at 31
March 2024

112.42
74.17°

441.22
0.40

739.89
(161.28)
(34.67)

95.21
48.47

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs')

Particulars Housing Loan Non Housing Loan
As at 31 March As at 31 As at 31 March As at 31
2025 March 2024 2025 March 2024
Standard assets
a) Total outstanding amount 181,284.85 167,837.72 39,040.61 30,688.96
b) Provisions made 712.46 500.76 115.40 70.72 -
Sub - Standard assets - -
a) Total outstanding amount 3,145.13 2,163.38 371.71 248.40
b) Provisions made 851.01 469.34 96.45 65.63
Doubtful assets — Category-I - -
a) Total outstanding amount 1,575.31 832.75 130.24 109.97
b) Provisions made 442,22 22223 33.82 29.10
Doubtful assets - Category-ll - -
a) Total outstanding amount 826.53 633.61 77.10 30.59
b) Provisions made 215.80 169.22 20.04 8.14
Doubtful assets — Category-lil - -
a) Total outstanding amount 416.19 230.91 14.62 7.85
b} Provisions made 108.82 61.70 3.82 2.09
Loss assets
a) Total outstanding amount . - - - -
b} Provisions made - - - -
Total .
a) Total outstanding amount 187,248.01 171,698.37 39,634.30 31,085.77
b) Provisions made ) 2,330.31 1,423.25 269.54 175.68
Contingent liabilities
{Amount in Rs. 'Lacs')
Particulars As at 31 March As at 31
2025 March 2024 -~
Contingent Liabilities* 99.71 114.86
Capital Commitments - -
Undrawn Commitment given o Borrowers 11,847.44 13,961.35
Bank guarantee issued by Bank Limited favoring the NHB for refinance facilities 2,175.00 2,175.00
Total 14,122.15 16,251.21

* Disputed income tax demand against which the Company has preferred an appeal before Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals)
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February 17,2021 under

Master Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021.

Draw down reserves
The Company has not made any draw down from reserves during year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

Concentration of public deposits, advances, exposures and NPA's

Concentration of Public Deposits ( for public Deposit taking/holding HFCs)

The Company does not accept any public deposits and hence the same is not applicable.

Concentration of loans and advances

{Amount in Rs. 'Lacs")

Particulars

As at 31 March As at 31

Total loans and advances to twenty largest borrowers
Percentage of Loans and Advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances of the HFC

2025 March 2024
102286  2,972.35
0.85% 1.47%

Concentration of all exposures ( including off - balance sheet exposure)

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs')

Particulars

As at 31 March As at 31
2025 March 2024

Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers

Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to total exposure of the HFC on borrowers / customers

Concentration of Non performing assets (NPA)

1,997.86 3,072.35
0.84% 1.52%

{Amount in Rs, 'Lacs')

Particulars As at 31 March As at 31
2025 March 2024
Total exposure to top ten NPA accounts* 1,408.01 842.54

* The exposure is disclosed at customer level.

Sectorwise Noh performing assets(NPAs)

Sectorwise percentage of NPAs to total advances in that sector

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs')

" Asat31March  Asat 34

2025 March 2024

A Housing loans : T 3.18% 2.25%
1 Individuals 2.53% 1.90%
2 Builders/Project loans 87.71% 24.86%
3 Corporates Nit Nil
4 Others Nil Nil
B Non housing loans : 1.50% 1.28%
1 Iindividuals 1.50% 1.28%
2 Builders/Project loans Nil Nil
3 Corporates Nil Nil

Nil Nil

4 Others




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No0.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February 17,2021 under
Master Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021.

62.6 Movement of Non performing assets(NPAs)
(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs')

As at 31 March As at 31

2025 March 2024
(I) Net NPAs to net advances (%) 2.13% 1.61%
(II) Movement of NPAs ( Gross)
a) Opening balance 4,257.46 3,145.79
b) Additions during the year ( net) 3,397.87 2,492.68
¢) Reductions during the year (1,098.50) (1,381.01)
d) Closing balance 6,556.83 4,257.46
(1) Movement of Net NPAs
a) Opening balance 3,230.01 2,434.43
b) Additions during the year (net) 2,358.40 1,940.77
¢) Reductions during the year (803.57) (1,145.19)
d) Closing balance 4,784.85 3,230.01
(IV) Movement of provisions for NPAs ( excluding provisions on standard assets)
a) Opening balance 1,027.45 711.36
b) Provision made during the year (net) 1,039.47 551.91
¢) Reductions during the year (294.93) (235.82)
d) Closing balance 1,771.99 1,027.45

63 Overseas Assets & Off-balance Sheet special purpose vehicle (SPVs) sponsored
The Company does not own any overseas assets as at year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.
There are no off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored as at year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

64 Disclosure of complaints

As at 31 March As at 31

2025 March 2024
a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year - -
b) No. of complaints received during the year 17 10
c¢) No. of complaints redressed during the year 17 10

d) No. of complaints pending at the end of - -

65 Asset liability management (Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities)

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs')

As at 31 March 2025

Borrowings Loans and Investments
from banks, Advances
financial
institutions
and non-
convertible
debentures
1 day to 7 days 331.11 2,142.11 -
8 day to 14 days 127.33 - -
15 days to 30/31 days - 31.36 -
Over 1 month and upto 2 months 6,472.43 1,449.87 -
Over 2 months and upto 3 months 4,612.51 1,333.94 -
Over 3 months and upto 6 months 13,464.35 3,591.72 -
Over 6 months and upto 1 year 27,792.54 6,897.61 -
Over 1 year and upto 3 years 86,567.09 30,784.38 -
Over 3 years and upto 5 years 45,465.04 32,802.92 -
Over 5 years 10,587.12 145,248.55 -
Total 195,419.52 224,282.46 -
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.N0.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February 17,2021 under
Master Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021.

{Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)

As at 31 March 2024

Borrowings Loans and Investments
from banks, Advances
financial
institutions
and non-
convertible
debentures
1 day to 7 days 259.29 1,741.94 -
8 day to 14 days 179.25 - -
15 days to 30/31 days - 77.06 -
Over 1 month and upto 2 months 5,226.03 1,220.16 -
Over 2 months and upto 3 months 4,162.12 1,152.07 -
Over 3 months and upto 6 months 12,077.30 3,274.05 -
Over & months and upto 1 year 29,028.28 6,477.85
Over 1 year and upto 3 years 72,545.32 27,377.47
Over 3 years and upto 5 years 41,128.44 29,550.75 -
Over 5 years 10,334.98 130,367.76
Total _ 174,941.01 201,239.11 -

Above disclosure is given as per NHB Master Circular

Classification of assets and liabilities under different maturity buckets is based on the same estimates and assumptions as used by the Company for

compiling the return submitted to NHB,

Exposure

Exposure to Real Estate Sector

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs')

Category

As at 31
March 2025

As at 31 March |
2024

Direct Exposure

Residential Mortgages

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the borrower
that is rented;

185,807.63

169,086.22

"Commercial Real Estate *

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, retail space, multipurpose
commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial
or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, etc.). Exposure would also
include non-fund based (NFB) limits;

1,440.38

2,612,114

Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures -

a) Residential

b) Commercial Real Estate

Indirect Exposure

Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance

Companies (HFCs)

*Builder loans given for residential project

66.2 Exposure to Capital Market

The Company does not have any Exposure to Capital Market as on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

66.3 Exposure to group companies engaged in real estate business

Nil
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February 17,2021 under
Master Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021.

Disclosure pursuant to Reserve Bank of India notification RBI/2021-22/31 DOR.STR.REC.11/21.04.048/2021-22 dated 5 May 2021 read with
Notification no. RBI/2020-21/16 DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 dated 6 August 2020.

Type of borrower Exposure to | Of (A), aggregate |Of (A) amount| Of (A) amount | Exposure to
accounts debt that slipped written off paid by the accounts
classified as | into NPA during during the |borrowers during| classified as
Standard the half year half year the half year Standard
consequent consequent
to to
implementati implementati
on of on of
resolution resolution
plan - plan -
Position as at Position as
the end of the at the half
previous half end of this |
year 31 March year®
2024 (A)
Personal Loans™ 3,496.05 112.91 - 234.05 3,308.27
Corporate persons - - - -
Of which MSMEs - - - -
Cthers* - - - - .
Total 3,496.05 112.91 - 234.05 3,308.27
As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
*Personal loans includes housing loans & non housing loans
Type of borrower Exposure to | Of (A), aggregate | Of (A) amount| Of (A) amount | Exposure to
accounts debt that slipped written off paid by the accounts
classified as | into NPA during during the |borrowers during| classified as
Standard the half year half year the half year Standard
consequent consequent
to to
implementati implementati
on of on of
resolution resolution
plan - plan —
Position as at Position as
the end of the at the end of
previous half this year
year 30
September
2024 (A)
Personal Loans* 3,308.27 36.93 - 164.14 3,107.48
Corporate persons - - - -
Of which MSMEs - - - - -
Others [ - - - -
Total 3,308.27 36.93 | - 164,14 3,107.48

As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

*Personal loans includes housing loans & non housing loans
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No0.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February 17,2021 under
Master Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021.

Disclosure in terms of in accordance with Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021 dated February 17, 2021 issued by the Reserve Bank of India read with RBI Circular No. RBI/IDNBS/2016-17/49 Master Direction
DNBS. PPD.01/66.15.001/2016-17 on Monitoring of frauds in NBFCs

There were Nil case (Previous Year 1 case) of frauds reported during the year where amount involved was Nil (Previous Year 24.61 Lacs) as on the date of
identification of fraud. The recovery pertaining to fraud reported during the year is 'Nil' (Previous Year Nil'). The nature of fraud involved is cheating and
forgery.

Details of loans transferred / acquired during the quarter ended March 31, 2025 under the RBI Master Direction on Transfer of Loan Exposures
dated September 24, 2021 are given below:

(i) The Company has not transferred any non-performing assets (NPAs).

(i) The Company has not transferred any Special Mention Account (SMA) and loan not in default.
(iii) The Company has not acquired loans not in default through assignment

(iv) The Company has not acquired any stressed loan.

Details of financing of parent company products
Not applicable

Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the HFC

The Company has not exceeded the prudential exposure limits during the financial year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February 17,2021 under
Master Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021,

Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators
The Company is registered with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs other financial sector regulators.

Revenue Recognition
There are no such circumstances in which revenue recognition has been postponed pending the resolution of significant uncertainties.

Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies
There are no prior period items and change in accounting policies except as reported in the Financial Statements.

Related party Transactions

(i) All material transactions with related parties are disclosed in "Note 35" of the Financial Statements.
(i} The Company has the policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions on its website and it is disclosed on its website

Group Structure
The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Svatantra Holdings Private Limited

|| —

Common Brand 100% Halding i Commion Brand
Name ' Name

Remuneration of Directors

During the year, the Company has paid remuneration to it's directors (refer note 35)

IND AS 110 -Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS)
The Company does not have any subsidiary company and hence, the CFS is not applicable.

The Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code') which may impact the contribution by the Company towards Provident Fund and
Gratuity. The effective date from which the Code and its provisions would be applicable is yet to be notified and the rules which would provide the details
based on which financial impact can be determined are yet to be framed after which the financial impact can be ascertained. The Company will complete its
evaluation and will give appropriate impact, if any, in the financial statements following the Code becoming effective and the related rules being framed and
notified.

There are no gold loan outstanding as on 31 March 2025

Undisclosed income
There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Title deeds of inmovable properties not held in name of the Company

The Company does not possess any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee) whose title deeds are not held in the name of the company during the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31,
2024,

There is no scheme of arrangement of Company which is approved by the Competant Authority in terms of section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Details of erypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during the financial years ended March 31,2025 and March 31, 2024,

Details of benami property held
No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
(45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder in the financial years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.




86

87

91

92

93

931

93.2

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.N0.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February 17,2021 under
Master Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021.

Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, other than the transactions undertaken in the normal course of business and in accordance with extant
regulatory guidelines as applicable.

{i). No funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(il). No funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (*Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Analytical Ratios
Numerator Denominator As at 31 March As at 31 % Variance Reason for
2025 March 2024 Variance (If
above 25%)
i) CRAR (%) 38,378.04 120,193.43 31.93% 34.76% 8.14% NA
i) CRAR — Tier | Capital (%) 36,579.91 120,193.43 30.43% 32.56% -6.53% NA
iii) CRAR — Tier Il Capital (%) 1,798.13 120,193.43 1.50% 2.20% -32.00% | Discounting of
subordinate
debts
v) Liquidity Coverage Ratio* 5,938.17 5,457.00 108.82% 171.01% -36.37% NA

* The Company is not required to comply with the guidelines on Liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) in line with Master Direction - Non Banking Financial
Company-Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

Wilful defaulter

The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender in the financial years ended March 31, 2025 and
March 31, 2024,

Relationship with struck off companies

The Company has not been undertaken any transactions with any company whose name is struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section
560 of Companies Act, 1956 in the financial years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)

All charges or satisfaction are registered with ROC within the statutory period for the financial years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024. No
charges or satisfactions are yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

Compliance with number of layers of companies

The Company does not have any investments and accordingly provision of section 186 (1) is not applicable.

Capital work in progress (CWIP)

The Company has CWIP during the financial years ended March 31, 2025 (Refer note 10).

Additional disclosures pursuant to the RBI2021-22/112DOR.CRE.REC.No. 60/03.10.001/2021-22 dated October 22, 2021 on Scale Based
Regulation (SBR) : A Revised Regulatory Framework for NBFCs

Corporate Governance report containing compesition and category of directors, shareholding of non-executive directors, etc.

The Company is a non-isted NBFC and the Corporate Governance Disclosure is covered under the corporate governance/ Director reports in the Annual
Report.

Breach of covenants
The Company has complied with the covenants under the terms of major borrowing facilities throughout the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February 17,2021 under
Master Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021.

Loans to Directors, Senior Officers and relatives of Directors

As at 31 March As at 31
2025 March 2024

Directors and their relatives ) z R
Entities associated with directors and their relatives - -
Senior officers and their relatives ) - -

There has been no divergence in asset classification and provisioning requirements as assessed by NHB during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31
March 2024.

Disclosure of modified opinion, if any express by Auditors, its Impact on various financial Items and views of management on audit
qualifications:

The statutory auditors have issued unmodified opinion for FY 2024-25 and FY 2023-24. Hence not applicable

Additional information where borrowings are from banks or financial institutions:
(i) The quarterly returns filed by the company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts.

(ii) The Company has used the borrowings from the banks or financial institutions for the purpose for which it was raised as at balance sheet date.
Previous year's figures have been re-grouped wherever considered necessary to conform to the current year's presentation.
Events after reporting date:

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements which require adjustment or disclosure as per the applicable accounting standards have been
adjusted or disclosed.

Signature 1 to 96
As per our report of even date attached
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Annex N
Schedule to the Balance Sheet of an HFC
{Amount in Rs."Lacs"}

2 Particulars = :
Liabilities side Amount Amount
i overdue

(1) |Loans and advances availed by the HFC inclusive of
linterest accrued thereon but not paid:

{a) | Debentures : Secured N I
:-— : Unsecured R || 3,017.01 =
| {other than falling within the meaning of public i\

{b) | Deferred Credits B - B ]

{c) |Term Loans 182 642.58
[(d) Inter-corporate tnans and borrowing L
{e) |Commercial Papar i
{fi |Public Deposits* i
{g) | Other Loans (specify nalure) L
* Pleass see Note 1 below

(2) | Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid): -

E In the form of Unsecured_debenlures | | -
(b) |In the form of partly secured debentures i.e.
debenlures where there is a shortfall in the vaiue of -

security
(c) |Other public deposits |
ane site bale | baj;
Assets side Amount outstanding |

"(3) Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills
receivables [other than those included in {4) below]:

(a) Secured i [l 224.282.48
(b) Unsecurad =

{4) |Break up of Leased Assels and stock on hire and other
assets counting towards asset financing activities -

{i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry
| debtors _
{a) |Financial lease - -

= ' {b) [Operating lease i -

{if) | Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry

debiors

(a) |Assets on hire

b |Reossessed Assets

m Other loans counting towards asset financiny; activities
(@) |Loans where assels have been repossessed

b _|Loans other than .a above -
{5) | Breakup of -
Current Investments =
1. |Quoted .
iy Shares -
&) Equity -
. (b Prefersnce . -
ebentures and Bonds =
1iiii; | Units of mutual funds - -
(v Govemment Securities -
(v, [Others \please speci'y ! =
2. Unsucted -
{iy |Shares I -
| al Equit,
b Preference -
(i |Debentures and Bonds =
jii| _|Units of mutua) funds -
Government Secu
liv. _|Others [lease spie:
Long Torm investments . -

1. [Quoted [ s
i} |Share | =
|8l Equity | -

bl Preference -

i Debentures and Bonds =l
it Units of mutual funds
liv] | Govemment Securities -
(vl _|Others (rlease specify) -
2, Unguoted = -
(i) |Shares -

| la) Equity -

b Preference -

D s and Bonds -
Units of mutual funds -
Govemment Securities i =

v _|Cthers Ir Proverty | 1 2.51 - _ —
(6) | Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3] and |4 above:
Category ! Amount net of provisions ——1
Secured . Unsecured 1 Total

1. |Related Parties ** |
| [Subsidiaries |

__|Comganies in the same trouy -
__|Other related parties |
Other than related varties 224,282.46 _ 224 282.46
Total 224.252.46 N 224,282.46
(7) | Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term| in shares and securities both suoted and unquoted] : .
Catesjory Market Value / Break up: or fair value or |Book Value |Net of Provisions)

1. |Related Parties **
8 |Subsidiaries E =
b!_|Camganies in the same Jroup ] - ——
ic! _|Other related parties J = =
2. | Other than related parties == —
Total = -
|_‘* As per applicable Accounting Standard (Please see Nate 3)




(8) | Other information

~—

Particulars Amount

(i)  |Gross Non-Performing Assets

(a) |Related parties .

(T) Other than related parties 6,556.83
(i)  |Net Non-Performing Assets

(a) |Related parties .

(b) |Other than related parties 4,784 .85
|(iii) |Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt -

Notes:
1. |As defined in Paragraph 4.1.30 of these Directions.

2. | Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in these Directions.

3. |As per applicable Accounting Standards including for valuation of investments and other assets as
also assets acquired in satisfaction of debt. However, market value in respect of quoted investments and
break up / fair value / NAV in respect of unquoted investments shall be disclosed irrespective of whether

they are classified as long term or current in (5) above.

i,
M(Z“'\a’:’
Jayesh Shah Anil Chirania
rector Director
DIN: 02562 108 DIN: 01082719
t
~
M“‘M

Nitesh Amarnani
Chief Financial Officer

Tasneem Rangwala
Company Secretary
Membership No: A34613
Place: Mumbai

Date:
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